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ndepBndent Auditors Report

To the Members of Barque Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Barque Hotels Private Limited (the "Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and ihe statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial staterments, including & summary of significant accounting policies and
oiher explanatory infarmation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
eforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a ttue and [air view in confarmity with the accounling principles generally
accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Saction 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Compeny in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartersd Accountants of India
togelher with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulffilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirerments and the Code of Cthics. We belisve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw aitention fo Note 489 to the financial statements, which explains the management’s assessment
of geing concern assumption and financial impact on account of COVID-18 pandemic situation and ifs
assertion thal based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue ag 2 going concerm i.e.
continue its aperations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise ils assets, for the foreseeable
future.

Our apinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in daing su, consider whether the olher information is matenally inconsistent with the financial
statemeants or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the waork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. \We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Barque Hotels Private Limited

Managemenl's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Finaneial Statements

The Company's Managemenl and Board of Directors are responsible for the matiers staled in Section
134(5) ofthe Act with respect (o the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair visw
of the state of affairs, profil/ loss and ather comprehensive incame, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance wilh the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for praventing and detecting frauds and ofher
irregularilies; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;, making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, thal were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compleieness of
the accounting records, relevant te the preparation and presentation of the financial statements thai give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statemenis, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matfers related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operalions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Direciors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influehce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dua to
fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obtam audit
avidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, inientional omissions, misrepresentations, or the cverride of internal control.

= Dbptain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the compary has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effactiveness of such contrals.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncerlainty exists related lo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaintly
exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Barque Hoftels Private Limited

disclosures, and whether the financial statements reprasent the undarlying transactions and events
i a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate wilh those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control
that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
malters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Gavernment of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A’ & statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

2, We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c.  The halance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changas in equily and the staterment of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

g. In our oplnion, the aforesaid financial staterments comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directars is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operaling effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separale
Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on [ts financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 40 to the financial statements.

B, The Company did not have arny long-term conlracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any maierial foreseeable losses,

c.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosad in
the Note 53 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any ather parsons or entities, including foreign entities (*Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing ar otherwisg, that the Intermediary shall:

» direclly or indirectly lend or invest in olher persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Barque Hotels Private Limited

«  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Nole 55 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company fram any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
underslanding, whether recorded in wriling or oltherwise, that the Company shall:

+ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumsiances, nothing has come to our notica that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

e.  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year,
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has

been paid or payable by the Company to its directors during the current year and accordingly, ihe
provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o2

Vikram Advani

Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 091765
Date: 06 September 2022 icAl UDIN-. 24091 F6HARBZYI8LE2
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

() (a) (A) The Cempany has maintained proper records showing full pariculars, including quantitative

0]

(b)

(i) (d)

() (e}

(i) (=)

(iii)

(b)

(a)

details and siluation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all properly, plant and equipment are verified once
In period of three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were physically verified during the year ended 31 March 2020, [n our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reascunable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According io the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the legsea) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.
However, original litle deeds are under lien with debenture trustee for the non-convertible
debenturesissued by the Company during the current year. Therefare, we could not verify those
title deeds and have not received independent confirmation from the debenture trustee.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assels) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinatian
af the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for halding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benarmi Property
Transaclions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 53 lo the financial statements.

The Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our apinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as lollowed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verilication between (he
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory,

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and an the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
securily of current assets at any point of time ofthe year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Accarding ta the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, or provided
guarantee or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or
any other parties during the year. The Company has provided security and has granted loans
io companies during the year, in respect of which the reguisite information is as below. The
Campany has not provided any security or granted any loans, secured ar unsacured, to limited
liability partnership ar any other parties during lhe year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Cantinued)

{b)

()

(e)

(f)

given to us the Company has provided securily and loans to any other entity as balow;

Particulars Security Loans
(Rs. in thousand) (Rs. in thousand)

Aggregate amount during the year
Subsidiaries® - 5,100
Others (fellow subsidiary) 4,100,000 -

Balance outsianding as at balance
sheet date

Subsidiaries® =
Dthers (fellow subsidiary) 4,100,000

220,667

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

Ascording to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducied by us, in our opinion the security given during the year and the terms and conditions
of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prajudicial to the interest of
the Campany.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest is nol stipulated for the loan (as on 31 March 2022) of Rs.
220,667 thousand given to Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited which is repayable on mutual
consent of the Company and Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited. As informed to us, the
Company has not demanded repayment of the loan (including interest) during the year. Thus,
there has been no default on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent. Further,
the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recards of the Cempany, there is no averdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans ta any
party during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Caompany, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to setile the overdues of existing Inans given
to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given ta us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has granted loans which are
repayable on mutual consent of the Company and Faulmech Hospitalty Private Limited
(subsidiary of the Company) and without specifying period of repayment lo its related parly as
defined in Clause (78) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™, details of which are
given balow:

k,_
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

Related Party

Aggregate of loans to subsidiany
- Repayable on demand (A) -
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of

Repayment (B) Rs. 220 667 thousand
Total (A+B) Rs. 220,667 thousand
Percentage of loans to the total loans 100%

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee as specified under
Saction 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”). In respect of security provided and
loans granted by the Company, the provisions of Section 185 of the Act have heen complied
with., The Company has complied with Section 186(1) of the Act. According to the information
and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section (1) of the
Section 186) of the Companies Act, 2012 are not applicable to the Company since the
Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facililies.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cosl records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the .services
rendered or goods sold by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duly of excise, Sales Tax and
Value Added Tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these slalutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tay, Cess and Other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases of Income tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and Qther
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable, except as mentioned belaw,

Name of the Mature of Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute the dues (Rs. in which the payment
thousand) amount
relates
The  Employees' | Provident 182 | March 2019 | 15  April | Not yet
Provident Funds | fund 2019 Paid
and (Additional
Miscellaneous liability due
Provisions to Supreme
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Name of the Mature of Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute the dues {Rs. in which the payment
thousand) amount
relates
Act, 1952 Court .
Judgement) |

The Haryana Tax | Luxury Tax 345 | October 15 Mot yet
on Luxuries Act, 2016 November | Paid

2007 2016

The Haryarma Tax | Luxury Tax 421 | November | 15 Not yet
an  Luxuries Act, 2016 December | Paid

2007 . 2016
; The Haryana Tax Luxury Tax 323 | December | 15 Not yet
on Luxuries Act, 20186 January Paid
2007 ' 2017

Central Goods and | Interest 342 | April 2021 - | 20 Not yet
Services Tax Act, | liabilty on August Septembe | Paid

2017 and State | Goods and 2021 r2021

Goods and | Services

Services Tax Act, | Tax

2017

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
statute the dues {Rs. in the amount dispute is
thousand) relates pending
(Financial Year)

Income Tax  Penalty ufs 120 | 2015-16 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 271C Income Tax
[ (Appeals)
Income Tax | Penalty u/s 1,006 | 2016-17 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 271C Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Addition to 266,965 | 2016-17 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 the taxable Income Tax
income (Appeals)

Amounts represents additions fo taxable income
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

{wiii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(e

(e

(e)

(M

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of aur examination
of the recards of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest therson to any lender. As at 31 March 2022, the
Company also has interest free loan amounting to Rs. 2,447,333 thousand from SAMH| Hotels
Limited ('Parent Company") repayable at the option of the Company and accordingly classified
as “other equity”. As this loan is repayable at the option of the Company, there has been no

default in repaymet

1t thereof.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority,

According to the information and explanalions given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, dause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
palance shieet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has taken funds from
following entity to meet the obligations of its subsidiary (as defined under the Act) as per details

below:
Nature of fund Mame of lender Amount Name of the
taken Involved subsidiary

Interest free loan | SAMHI Hotels | Rs. 5,100 | Paulmach
from SAMHI | Limited thousand Hospitality
Hotels  Limited Private | imitad
(Holding
Company)

Mature of
transaction
for which

funds utilised

Loan given for
general
corporate '
and project
expenses.

According to the information and explanations given (o us and proceduras performed by us, we
report that the Company has issued non-convertible debentures during the year on the pladge
of securities held in its subsidiary as per details below:

MNature of Name of Amount of Name of the | Relationsh | Details of
loan taken lender loan (Rs. in subsidiary p security
thousand) pledged
Non- Sarvara 2,850,000 | Paulmech Subsidiary | 100%
convertible I Investment Hospitality shareholdi
debentures Fund | Private ng held by
(Refer Note 20 Limited the
to the financial Company
statements) in the
subsidiary.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statementis
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(x) (=)

(b)

(xi) (a)

by

(c)
(i)

(i)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

()

(a)

(sevi)

(i)

(xix)

Furthar, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of such loans raised.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accardingly, clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Campany has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accardingly, clause
3(x)(h) of the Order is not applicable

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according fo ihe
informalion and explanations given lo us, no fraud by the Campany or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audil,

According to the infarmation and explanations given ta us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as preseribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company,
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According o information and explanations given lo us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details regarding such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by applicable accounting standards, Being a wholly owned
subsidiary company of public limited company, the requirements of Section 177 of the Act of
having an Audit Committee are not applicable.

Based on informalion and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opiniorn,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the inlermnal audit reports of the Company issued lill date for the period
under audit

I our opinion and according to the information and explanations given {o us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons cannected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Campany is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order i not applicable.

The Company is nol required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accardingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Campany is not a Core Invesiment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the raquirements of clause
3fxvi)(d) are riot applicabla.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 515,975 thousand in the current financial year
and Rs 463 791 thousand in the immediately preceding financial year.

Ihere has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly. clause
3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable,

We draw atiention to Note 49 to the financial statements which explains that the Campany has
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2022. The note also explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and
financial impact on account of COVID-19 pandemic situation and its assertion that based on
best estimates made by it, the Company will ‘continue as a going concern i.e continue its
operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its assets, for lhe foreseeable
future.

On the basis of the above and acearding to the information and explanations given to us, on the
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assels and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and managament plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to helieve that any material uncertainty exists as on tha date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liahilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{3) The requirements as stipulated by the pmviéions of Section 135 are nol applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

e

Vikram Advani

FPartner
Place. New Delhi Membership No.: 091/85
Date: 06 September 2022 IcAI UDIN:AL.0 91 F6DARBZ Y| BRD2
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statemants
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to In paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Bargue Holels
Private Limited ("the Company’) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audil of the financial
statemants of the Company for the year ended on that date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
refererce to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company consideting the essential components of internal contral staled in the
Guidance Nete on Audit of Intemal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Naote").

Management’s and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are respongible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
crileria established by the Company considering the essential componenis of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assels, the prevenlion
and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting records, and the
limely preparation of reliable financial information, as required undar the Act,

Auditor’'s Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intermal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nate
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicahble (o
an audit of internal financial contrals with reference lo flinancial statemants Those Standards and the
Guidanece Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguale internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
espects.

Our audit involves performing procedures io obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference fo financial statements, assessing the risk that a materfal
weakness exists, and fesling and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
hased on the assessed risk. The pracedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far
aur audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Finangial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designad to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Barque Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial staiements include those policies and
procedures that (1] pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurelely and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
Ihat transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permii preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding pravention or fimely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect an the financial stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of callusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference 1o financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBE R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

Moo

-

Vikram Advani

Partner
Place: New Delhi Memberehip No.: 091765
st _ "
Date: D6 September 2022 1cAl UDINZ 2041 F4OARBZY 18252
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Fargue Hotels Private Limited
Halance Shewt s at 31 Muorch 2022

A amenenis ave fm Inelion Hugews (000, wnlass othars

ARSRTS

Nom-current assets
Properiy, plant <od equipmsnt
Cupilel vork-in-progress
Right o 15 asss03
Other intangiblz asscts
Finanzial assets
Trovesemen i subsidisey
Lonns
Diher [manvial assels
Tewin e tax nssats (net)
Cither ton-currant assem
T'atal mon-current zssets

Current asgels
Invenmrics
Finanvial ussss
Trade receivahlzs
Cash and cash eguivalents
Bail balances other than eash and cash sguivalents thove
Other francial asset
OHher cumonl dasels
Assethzll for sale
Tutal currenl assety

TOTAL ASSETE
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Euuily share capiul
Othar equity

Total equity

Nor-current Linbilities
Financial iabilities
Dormuwings
|.ease linhilities
Trade payables
- total outstanding duss of miers enterprizes snd small
entamrines
= teral patsranding dues of credimrs other than mmivem
enremrises and srall enermrizes
Irovisions
Orher nen-corrent liabilities
Total non- curcent liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liahilizs
Bomewings
Lease liebilitics
Trads pevables
- ulal putstanding dugs of micro entemprises and smsll
entemrises
- rotzl outstanding ducs of creditors otherthan micen
entemrises and small enterprises
Oxlier financial liabilitias
Crher currers liabilitizs
Provisions
Total current linhilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Moie

[

S =

12
13
14
13
G

17

I8
19

21
g

FaoEa B
=1 St

28
29
i

The nates from Kotz | te Xote 55 form an miegral part of these financial suvements.

A pe o repoil of even dale duscied

For BER&Co. LLP
Chiartered decoumbanty
TCAT Tirm Registration Mo 101 REWSW- 100021

Yikram Advani
FPariner
Membership Mo 0917635

Plave: New Delhl
Dlate; D6 Szoteniher 2042

ehri
DIN: 6813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 06 Seprember 2022

Asat
31 Murch 2022

Avat
31 Mareh 2121

2RS6,141 3 036,745
10,626 10,354
334,955 568,040
15154 17373
71,060 T 008
220,667 152,277
67,715 a0
5,372 3,54
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3497, 700 3,755336
IR H -
11784
2523
83213
4077
126,276
To Ao
130,316 320,587
3.028.026 4,075,023
383,751 00 461
735,224 403 388
1,118,979 798,740
2,202,380
185,092 105,770
8i4 2
4,946 5792
81418 87,631
2,554,720 180,214
" 2,706,972
54,564 57374
1,60
17625 129,254
2,426 23,458
25,104 67375
2,706 3,521
254,718 2,087,060
1918026 4,075,923

Far and on hebol? ol Boand of Direchors of
Bargque Hotelz Prjrara Limired

Mlanish Bhapai
Directar
LIN: DBO9Z409

g Gungnm
Tonte: 06 Sepember 2022

Ashish Jain
Compemy Secretany
Memhership Mo A1O08E

Place: Ciurgran
Drace: 06 Sepember 2023



Barque Holels Privatc Limited
Statement of Prefit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
CAl cunoneries ore fr Bidian Bungees (000), undess mtherwise

i

licame

Revenie funn operaiions
Cither incoime
Totalincome

Expenses

Cost of materials congumed
Employee benefits expensc
Qher expenses

Total expenses

I'rofiti(loss) before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation, tax and
exceptional items

Finance costs
Depreciation and anooisacion expenst

[.css hefore lax and exceptional ilems
Lixceplional flems
Luss before fax

Tax expense
Current fax
Defered tax
Less for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Dtemy that will not be veclussified to profit or foss

- Re-mensurement gain/(loss) on defined benetic obligaions
= Ingorme fax relaling toolams menlioned above

Oiher comprehensive income/iloss), net of tax
Tatal comprehensive ineome/{loss) for the year
Harnings per equily share

toommnal value ol share INR T [previons yur INR 0]

Basic (INR})
Dituted (INR}

Note

3
32

L LUl
b S

<1

36

a8

ay

The notes from Nate | to Wate 35 form an integral part of taese financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Charlered dcconitants
[CALFimn Registration Moo LO1248W/ W-100022

A

Wikram Advani
Partner
Muernbership New: 191765

Place New [elli
[Date: 06 September 2022

For the year ended
31 Murch 2027

For the year ended
Al March 2021

Forand on behalt of Board of Directors of

Barque Hotels Private Limiled

hivectar

DIN: 068 13081

Place: Gurngram
Date: 06 September 2022

Wanish Bhagat
LHrecian
(30 08092409

Place: Guragram
Date: D& Septembar 2022

344,978 294,345
33,815 23,369
= 580,813 321,714
4TRIT 37.434
143,487 158,851
389,273 246,304
580,577 442,539
246 (120,875)
46,389 301,009
188,996 186,550
638,385 188,499
(658,139] (609.374)
(2,344] 12,619
(655,795) (621,993)
{655,795) (621,993)
75 (531
75 53)
(633,720] (622,046)
(1925) (20.70)
(1925 (2070

¢ N

/.
Ashish Jain
Clrampany Neerawary
Membership Moo A10088

Placs: Gurugram
Dare: 05 September 2021



Barque Hotals Privale Bimilert
Simlement of Cash Flews For the year ended 31 March 2022

(il ctnronsis coee §

A,

1 iy Fiipees (006, nredess aihzneiie sioted)

Cash Mows fron operating activities

Loss before tax.

Adjustments fo reoencile [oss hefare tax ta net cash Hews:
Depreciation and amarbaation cxpense
Prowigi le had and doubtful debts
Finanes costs
Interss: income
Amartisatian of ircome received in advance
Ciain on lease asscls
el gain en fair veluztien of eguity compones; of convenlble PIK obligation
Capile! work-in-progress writen off
Provision no longer required wiitlen back
Cioverm ent grant
Unwinding of discount on security deposits

Operating loss before working capital ol 08
(locrazsed in inventones
([nerease)/ decrease in irade reecivabies
Diecrerse m ather finandial assets
(Increasel/ decrvasu in other assuts
Tnerease £ fdecrease) in rade payabdles
Tnirease [ {decreases) in other labilites
([ecrease) in provisions
{Dieerense) ioatver financizl liahiltiss

Cagh generated from) (nied in) npeeaiinns
Tnzome taves (paid) / refundad - net

Met cazh generated from/ (used tu) operating activities

Cash flows feom inverting activities
TDurehose of properly, plant and equipment, wapital work-in progress and other
intinghla nssats
Logn provided to aubsidinny
Bank depasits mansted
Bank depesits mada
Intarest received
Met cash generated From{used in) investing activites

Cash flaws from financing activities
Hun-survent borrwi ngs availed doriug the year {nee of upfront interesl)
Men-current burmowings repaid duing the year (net of upfront interest)
Leaze payments
Tnterest froe loans received from holding compeny
Finance sosts peid

Mot eash generaced fromdused Iny Twancing activities

et nereased decvease) in cash and eash equivalents (h B C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yeur

Cusliand cash equivalents at the ond of the vear

Motes to Statement of Casli Flows

Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash en band

Aalameos with bans ;

~ o11 urEent ACCoLs
Bank deposits with criginal memrity of less than 3 months

For the yrar ecnded
31 Macch Tz

{655,795)

158, 596

Eor the year ended
31 NIpreh 2021

{021,993}

186,390

01909

(b,555)
(5,233)
12,619
{117
(2,250
] (6,474)
o (32899) {143,509}
(2.000) -
[4,014) 15,510
17,929 &6
47129 {1,026)
46,948 {106,159
(39.755) 26,211
(1.588) (3uy
(420 [1,925)
430 (197,528)
(2534 20,432
1.404) (177.376)
(19,473 235
(5, 1000 (28,744)
12,511 168,082
{Aa,701} (344,400
4,674 16,650
(1,319} 11,824
[" b
(57,377)
254,550 536,166
{214,282
42,603
46,380 (4.366)
25,235 33,801
T1813 25,235

As al
31 March 2022

Asat
1 March 2021

1355 583
42,756 17,151
27,504 7,501
71,618 25,235




Barque 1odels Private Limiled
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 *acch 2022
(L cxmonnenis erre i ey Bupees ('000), wtdesy ovhervise soed)

il.  Movement in Financial liabilivies

Agom 1 Apil 2021

Bumowings availed during the year

Borowings repaid dodng the vear

Finanes cost expanse

[nteces: ineomne en Leen Finds (Refer Note 33)

Finnes cost paid

[nteres! experse on lzase lizbilities

Eequity compenent of cevertible PIK obligation (Refer Mate 15)
Asan 31 bMarch 2022

Ason | Aol 2030

Finanes cost expanss

Financs cost paid

Interest experse on leasa lebilities
Azan 31 Maich 2021

* [peludes cument matuities of ren-current karmadng:

i, Foeomovement o leasa fiabilities, refer hate 47

Non-current borrowings*

Current burrowings

‘Lotal

2,706,972 &
TE4,500
(2,607,385) -
459,389 %
23,282 - 24,282
(214,487) - (214,482)
(21,887) (21,887)
(735,800) - (735.500)
2,192,380 = 7,292,380
2754835 2.754,836
301,800 N, 900
122,804) 3 (322.504)
(25.581) 2 (20,9%9)
2,706,972 7 2,706,972

v, The Siatement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the Trdirest Mathod as seroutin the Ind AS 7 "Starement of Cash Flows"

The notes fram Mote | ta Mute 35 Formoan intepeal pail of these financial satements.

A per o Tepoik ol even dats attached

For TSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounants
ICAT Firm Registrotion Mo 10138 WAR-100022

Vikram vami
Herbizer
Membership e 021765

Plac: Muw Delln
Drave. 06 September 2022

Directar
T G68L30R1

Plave, Guragram
Dinte: D46 September 2022

Ferand vn behall oI Baard of Dircctorzab
Baryue Huiels Private Lioited

Manish Bhagnt
Diipseior
DIN; DRLUZA400

iace: Gunigmm
Date: 06 Seprember 2022

Ashich Jain
Congorny Soopetooy
MMemberchip M. : ALODES

Plaze: Grrugrem
Drate: &6 Septomber 2022
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Barque Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al aimounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

1.1

1.2

Corporate information

Barque llotels Private Limited (“the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India. The Company was
incarporated in India on 27 March 2008 as per the provisions of Indian Cormpanies Act and is limited by
shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment Company with focus on aperaling internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Piesently, the Company has twelve hotels under it, out of which eleven hotels (Lloliday Inn Express -
Ahmedabad, Bangalors Whiteficld, Pune Hinjwadi, Gurugram, Pumpri, Hyderubad Hi-tech, Nashik,
Chennai OMR, Ilyderabad Banjara Hills, Bangalore Tumlcur Road and Caspia Pro - Noida) are operational
and one hotel is inder development,

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Slandards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013, (the “‘Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Also refer nole 49 for going
cancern basis of accounting used by the management.

The tinancial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on 6 September
2022,

Functivnal and presentation currency

These financial statemen(s arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

T'he financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

[tems Mceasurcment basis
Certain financial assets and liabilitics Fair valuc
Equity Compenent of convertible PIK Fair valuc
obligation

Significant accounting judgments, estimales and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requircs management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting palicies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures, Uncertainty about
the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying
value of asscts or liabilitics affected m future periods,
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Bargue Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the yvesr ended 31 March 2022
(AN amouns are in Indien Rupees (D00), uniess otherwise stated)

iii)
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviswed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimutos
are tecognived in the period in which the estimales arc revised and in any future periods affected.

The following are the significant arcas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting, policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
staternenty;

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period.

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of'such option is reasonably certain, The Company
makes an assessment on the expected [2ase term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it
i reasonably certain thal any options o cxlend or terminale the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the lsase term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold lmprovements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives. ‘The leass term in the future possible periods is reassessed to ensure that the loase term
reflects the current economic cireumstances,

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated
ot for the portfolio ol lcases wilh similar characteristics,

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment, capital worle-
in progress and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverabls amounts of property, plant and cquipment arc based on cstimates
and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, nbsolescence, demand,
competition, and known technological advances, The company reviews the useful lives and recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress and other intangible assets at the end
ol ¢ach reporting date.

Employee benefit obligations

Employce benefit obligations (gratuily and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which Involves defermination of the discount rate, fulure salary increases and morlality ralcs.
Due to the complexitics volved in the valuation and its long-term naturs, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes 1 these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instroments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respeet ol which quoted prices in
aclive markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from obseryable markets whete possible, hut where this is not feasible, a degres of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments includs considerations of inputs such as liquadily rigk, eredit
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Barque Hotels Private Limiled
Xotes to the financial statements for the year cnded 31 Mareh 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise siated)

risle and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
(mancial instruments. Also, refer note 43 for further disclosures.

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilitics

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilitics involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deterred tax asset
is recognised Tor unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available, (o the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profils will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced (o the extent that it is no Tonger
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current and non-current elassification

The Company presents assels and liabilities in the balance shest based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classificd as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria;

- itis expeeted fo be realized 1, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Compeny’s normal operating
cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following eritcria:

-1t 1§ expected to be sctiled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporling date; or

- the Company does not have un unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in ils
scttlement by the issue of equity instrurnents do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilitics respectively. All
other asscls/ liabilities are classificd as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liabilitics (if any) are classified
4s non-current assels and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Compuny has ascertained its operating cycle as lwclve months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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MMeasorement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of (it values, Tor
both financial and nan-financial asscts and lighilities, The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. 'The finance team of the Company has overall responsibilily
for overseeing all significant fair value measurcments, including Level 3 fair values, and reports ditcetly fo
the Holding Company’s Chief Financizl Officer.

They regularly review significant unobscrvable inputs and valvation adjustments. [f third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance leam asscsses the cvidence obtained from the third partics o
support the conelusion that snch vahiations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as Far 25
passible, Fair valucs are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs nsed
in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thal arc obscrvable for the asset or liahility,
either divcetly (1.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

¢ Leyel 3; inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

If'the inputs used to measure the fair value ol an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the tair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 1s categorized in its entirely in the same level of the fair value
higrarchy as the lowest level mput that is significant to the entire measurcment,

The Company recognizes transters between levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has oceurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 43,

2. Summary of significant accounting policics

1)

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losscs iF any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and dircetly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item ol property, plant and equipment have different usefid Tives, then they are
accounted for as separalc ilems (major components) of property, plant and cquipment.
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Subseguent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and cguipment is added to its book value only
if it is probable that the future coonomie benefits associated with the expendilure will flow to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Guins or losses arising from derecognition of property. plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or
loss when the asset is derceognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is caleulated using the straighi-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates, The assels’ residual values and useful lives ace reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In casc of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on #ddition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e, from/ (upto) the datc on which the
asscl is ready for use/ (disposed otf).

The management estimale of the useful life of various categorics ol assets is as follows:

Asset Category™® | Useful Life (years) Useful life as per
Schedule [ to the
Companies Act, 2013

Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3 3-6
Plant and machinery ) 5-20 1%
Furniture and fixtures 8 10
Office equipment 5-10 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on intemal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expeets 1o use these assets.
Hence, the usetul lives of fow assets included in the above asset categories are different frorm the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 to the Campanies Act 2013,

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on 4 pro rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed
by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.
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2) Tntangible assets

3)

i,

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Atter initial recognition,
un intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accwmulated impairment loss, i1
any.,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it incregses Lhe future ceonomic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

[ntangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized nsing the straight-ling
method over the estimated useful life (at present 3-10 years) or the tenure of the respeciive software license,
whichever is lower, The amortization period and the amortivation method are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asscl s significantly different from previous cstimaics,
the amortization peried is changed accordingly.

Gains or lasses arising from derccognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assct and arc recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset 18 derccognized,

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued arc mitially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial ussets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All linancial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, Fair value is the price that would be received
t s¢ll an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction belween market participants at the
measurement date_ 'he fair valuc of a financial instrurment on initial recognition is generally its transaction
price (that is, the fuir value of the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between
the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair valuc i3 based on a quoted price
in an active market or a valuation technigue that uses only data from observable markets, the Company
recognises the difference as a gain or loss at inception (*day 1 gain or loss”). In all other cases, the entire
day 1 gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the
transaction until the transaction matures or is closed out.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Finaneial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVOCT — debl investment;
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- FVOCI —equity investiment; or
- FVTPL,

Financial aasets are not reclassificd subsequent to their nitial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business mode!l for managing financial assets.

A financial asser is measured at amortised cost it it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at EVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whosa objective is to hold assets to callect contractual cash Flows:
and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and inlerest on the pringipal amount oulslanding.

A debt investment 1s measure at FYOCL it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL.

— the asset 18 held within 2 business model whose objeclive is achieved by bath collecting contractual cash
flows and selling finaneial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payinents of prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
All financial assets not clagsified as messured at amortised cost ar FVOCI as deseribed above are measured
at FVTPL, This includes all derivative financial asscts. On initial recognition, the Company may irtevocably
desipnate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measurad at amortised cosl or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise anse.
Financial ossets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessinent of the objective of the busingss model in which a financial assel is held
at a porllolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to managernent, for instance the stated policies and objectives lor the portfolio, frequency, volume and timing
of sales of financial assels in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activily,

Financial assels: Assessment whether contractual cash [lows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial assel on initial
reeognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other buasic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and adminisirative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
cansiders the contractual terms of the instmment. This includes assessing whether the  financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condilion, Tn making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent cvents that would change the amount or Liming of cash flows;
- ferms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
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Financial assets’ Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These ussets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assely al including any interest or dividend incoms, ars recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Pinancial ssscts | These assers ate subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and lossss and
impairment are recognised in profit or logs. Any pain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss,

Debt investments | These assels are subsequently measured at fair valuc. Tnterest fhcome

at FVOCI under the effective interest methad, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised m profit or loss. Other nel gains and
losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCT arc reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Thvidends are

investments recognised as income n profit or loss unless the dividend clearly

at FYOCL represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains

and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profii or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL, il it is classified as held-for-trading, ot it 13 a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Tinancial liabilities at FVTPL are measured af fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured al
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
arc recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

ifi. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a fmancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assel expire, or it transfers the rights to reeeive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfarred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retaing substantially all of the nisks and rewards ol ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transterred asses, the transferred assets
arc not derecognized.

Financial llabilities

The Company derecognises a financial lability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its lerms are modified and the cash Hlows under
the moditled terms arc substantially dilferent. In this case, a new financial liebility based on the modified
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lerms s recognised al fair value, The difference betwesn the carrying amount of the  financial liability
extinguished and the new finaneial liability with modified terims is recognised in profit or loss.

v Offvetting
Iinancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balince sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to sct off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

v.  Compound financial instrumenis

Cotnpound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible debentures denominated in
INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the numbgr of shares Lo be
issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value,

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair valuc of 4
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option, The cquily componient is initially recognised
at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument ag a whole and the fair value
of the liability component. Any dircelly allribuiable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effectve interest methed. The equity component of a compound financial
instrument is not remeasured subscquently.

Interest related to the financial Hability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the
cost ol an asset). In case of canversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain
ot loss 18 recognised.

vi. Concessional overdrafi facility

The Company has availed overdraft facility from banks at an interest rate lower thun the market mte,
because its holding company has pledged fixed deposit with the banks for this overdraft facility. This
difference between the interest rate charged by the bank and market mate is treated as deemed equity
provided by the holding company, with a corresponding debit to the Statement of Profit and Laoss.

vir. Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
tlows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans.
The difference hetween the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised as equity
componentin the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs
and interest expense is recognised using effective intersst rate method. On modification in the tetms of such
loans wherein they became repayable at the option ol the borrower resulting in it becoming perpetual debt
such Joans including acerued interest up to the date of modification have been treated as other cquity.
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Vil

. Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Finaneial assets:

It the terms of a financial assets are modified, the Company cvaluates whether the cash flows ol the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows arc substantially different, then the contractual
rights la cash Mows [rom the original {inancial assets are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original
financial assct 1s derccognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value,

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross earrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising rom adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profil or loss.

Financial liabilities.

The Company derecognises a financigl Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modificd liubility are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms 1s recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with moditied terms is recognised in profit or loss.

. Non-convertible debentures

4)

The Company has issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as finaneial liability
in books and carried al amortised cosL.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component of convertible PIK
obligation. Asthe risks associated with the underlving variable are not closely related Lo the hostmstrurmicnl,
the equity component has bsen separately accounted lor rom the NCDs o other equity, The equity
component has been fair valued through profit or loss at each balance sheet date.

Impairment
A, Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recogniscs loss allowances for cxpected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether inancial assets carried at amortised cost. A financial
asset is “credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated luture
cash flows of the financial asscl have occurred.

Evidence that a tinancial asset 1s credit-impaired weludes the following observable data:
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- significant finaneial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or mors;

-the restructuring of a loan or advancs by the Company on Lerms that the Company would not consider
othorwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankrupiey or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market tor a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances af an amount equal to lifetune expected credit losses, except for the
following, which arc measured as 12 month expected credit losses i.e. bank balances for which credilt risk (i.e.
the risk ot default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased signi fcantly
since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured al an amounl equal io lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default evenis over
the expected life of a financial nstriument,

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses thal result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period it'the expected life of the instriment.
is less than 12 months).

In 2l cases, the maximum perind considered when estimating expected credit losses s the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk,

When determining whether the crediv risk of a financial asset has mnereased significantly since inilial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that i1s relevant and available without undue cost or efforl. This includes both quantitative and
gualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and ineluding forward-looking information.

The Company considers a financial agset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations fu the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due,

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.c. the difference between the cash flows due to the Compuny n

accordance with the contract and the cash tlows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uscs a provision malrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the tade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking cstimaies. Al every




Barque Hotels Privale Timiled
Nutes to Lhe financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(4l amounts ore in [ndian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise siated)

f)

reporiing date, the historical observed default vates are updated and changes in the forward-lopking
eglimates are analysed.

FPresentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheei
Loss allowances for financial assels measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross canying
amount of the agsets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is 1o realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sonrces of income that could gencrate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amourits subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activilies in order to comply with the Company’s procedutes for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of asscis are reviewed at each reporting date il there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/extenal factors. An impairinent loss is recognized wherever the carrving amount of an
asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoyerable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price und value in use, In asgessing value in use, the cstimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the ussel (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only o the extent that the asset's cartying amount docs not cxceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of traded goods is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition and is
determined on a first in first out ("FIFQ") basis. Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of busmess, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimaie can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the ¢ffect of the time vahie of money 1y material, provisions are determined by discounting the expectad
future cash flows al a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management 4t cach reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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7) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be contirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurtence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that 18 not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
relizhly. The Company does nol recognize a contingent liabilily but diseloses its existence in the finencial
statements.

8) Borrowing costs

9)

(a

b

)

=

Borrowing eosts are intersst and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustiment to intevest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their inlended wse arc capilalised. Capitalisation ol borrowing costs is suspended in the period during
which setive development 18 delayed duc to interruption, other than temporary interuption, Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Protit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Cmployee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service 1s rendercd by cmployees.

Post-cmployment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund & Employee State Tnsurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays speeified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts, Provident fund scheme and employee siate
wnsurance ate defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the Profit or loss during the
period in which the employee renders the relaled service. [T the contribution already paid is less than the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balanee sheet date, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
alrcady paid cxeeeds the contribution due for services received before (he balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized us an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in [uture payment or a
pash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity
The Company's gratuify scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benelit plans are determined based on wctuarial valuation carvied out by an independent actuary
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using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes cach period of service as giving rise to an
addilional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separalely (o build up the final
obligation,

The obligation is measured al the present value of estimated future cash Mows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obhigation under defined bensfit plans, are based on thematket yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the lerms off
related obligations.

Re-meusurerment gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and chunges in actuarial
assumptions are rccognized in the period in which they occur, divectly in other comprehensive meome and
arc never reclassified to profit or loss, Changes i the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognived immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cosl.

(¢} Other long-terim emplovee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can camry-forward 4 portion of the unutilized acerued compensated absences and utilize it
in fulure service periods or receive cash compensadon on lermination of employment, Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months aller the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employec benefit, The Company records
an obligation for such compensated ahsences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlerment. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

10) Revenue recognition

Revenug is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transfernng the goods or servicas to 4 custorner i.e. on Lransfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts,

Roam revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revemue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the parfurmance obligation, Revenue
comprises toom revenue, sale of food und beverages, property management services, recreation and other
services relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food
and beverages.

Space ventals

Space rental income comprises amoun! eamed for usc ol hotel premises space by other partics, The income
is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the collection of the consideration,
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11) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profitor loss on the date on which the Company’s right torecaive payment
is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method,

The ‘effective interest rate’ iy the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected Life of the financial instrument to;

- the gross carrying amaunt of the financial asset; or

the amortised cost of the financial liability.

[n caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the lability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, inferest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rale to the amortised cosl ol the Minancial asset. 1T the asscl is
no longer credit-impaired, then the caloulation of intercst incormie weverts Lo the gross basis.

12} Accounting for foreign currency transaciions

Transactions and balances

Forcign currency Iransaclions arc translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
detes of the transactions. Torcign cxchange gains and losses resulting rom the setlement ol such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and lisbilitics denominated in foreign currencies at
vear end exchange rates are generally recognised in the profit or loss.

Foreigh exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance cosis. All other forsign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or [oss on
a net basis.

13) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extenl that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive incoine.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recervable on the taxable income or loss for the vear and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of  cwrrent tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering — the uncertainty, if ay,
related to neome taxes, 1tismensured using tax rates (and fax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitics arc offsct only il there is a legally enforceable right o st off
the recognised amounts, and it 1 intended to realise the asset und settle the lahility on a net basis or
simultaneously.
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Wotes Lo Lhe financial siatements for the year ended 31 Mureh 2022
(Al amounts are in Indion Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

Deterred tax

Delerred tax is recognised in respeet of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the carresponding amounts used for  taxalion purposcs.
Deferred lax is also recognised in respect af camied forward Lax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recogniscd for:

- tempuorary differences arising on the initial recognilion of assets or liabilities in a wansaction thatisnota
business combinalion and that affcets neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
lransaclion; and

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Company is able to
control the dmings of the reversal of the temporary difterences and it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assels are recogniscd Lo the extent thal it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is sirong cvidence that fulwe taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history ol recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferved tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidenee that sufficient texable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can he
realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/ reduced o the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benelit will be realised.

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement ot deterred tax retlects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Campany expects, at the reporting date, 10 recover or settle the carrying amount of its azsets and liahilitics.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset il there is a legally enforceable right Lo offset current tax
liebilities and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

14) Segment reporting

Operating segiments are 1eported in a manmer consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Holding Company's Chief Executive Officer has been identified
as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'")
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(ALl amounts are in Indian Rupees (000, unless otherwise slaled)

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the operating sepmenis used Lo present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources o the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment 15 a component of the Company that engages
in business activitics from which il earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

15) Leases
Compnrny as a Lessee

Om neeption of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is. ar
contains & lease when it conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time n
exchange for consideration. To assess whether o contract conveys the right Lo control the use of an identified
assel, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract mvolves the use of an identified asset (if) the Caimpany
hus substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (1i7)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the assel

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, exeepl lor leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-1erm leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value lcases,
the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the leasc.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
contract to the lease and non-leagse components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the
l¢ase accounting mods! only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, leage payments made at or before the commencement
date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received, They are subscquently
moasured al cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also
adjusted for any re-measuremnent of lease liabilities. [nless the Company 1s reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the Teases al the end of the lease term, recognised right-of~
use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorler of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease lLiability 1s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments o be made over the lease
term, The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ puyments) and variable
lcase payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. “In-substance fixed’
payments #re payrments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In
caleulating the present value of loase paymenls, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lcase commencement date it the nterest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to
exercige and excludes the effect of carly termination oplions where the Company is not reasonably certain
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thar it will exercise the option, Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchass option if the
Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exerciss an sxtension or a tetmination option and any
lease modilication,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which
guaranice a minimum amount of rent over e lease term, the guarantesd amount 18 considered to be an ‘-
substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the Ieasc liability. Payments which
are ‘in-gubstance fixed’ are charged against the leage liability,

Lense liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Shest and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows. .

Company as a Lessor

Al the inception of the lzase the Company classifies sach of its leases as either an operating leuse or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease torm. Tn case of a fnance lease, fnance income is recognised over the
lease term based on @ pattern reflecting ¢ constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in
the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is & short term
lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease,

It an arrangement contains lease and non-leasc components, the Compuny epplics nd AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

16) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted sarnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares,

Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss awributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except
where the results would be anti-dilutive.

17) Investment in subsidiary

Inyestment in subsidiary is carried at cost, less any imparment in the value of investment, in these separate
financial statements.
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Moles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2022
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18) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which arc subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in valuc.,

19) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-cutrent assets or disposal groups comprising assets and lizbilitics are classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carcying amount and fair valuc
less costs to sell. Any resultant loss on disposal group is allocated first (o goodwill, and then to remaining
assets and labilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to invenlories, financial assets,
deferred tux asscts, employee benefit assets, and biological assets, which continue to be tmeasursd in
accordance with other accounting policics, Losses on initial classitication as held for sale and subsequent

gzins and losses on re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

20) Government Grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidics ffom the government are recognised when there is recasonable assurance that (1) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to then, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme

The grant or subsidy reccived o compensats the import cost of assets, subject fo an export obligation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Toss in ratio of fulfilment of associsted cxport obligations.

Service Exports from India scheme (SELS)

The scheme entitles the Company ta receive SELS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant ig recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis al realizable value.

21)Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the acorual basis and provisions are made for all known losscs and liabilities.
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.

Tvusfraund fosulsidioey Asaul
A1 March 2022
Investinents in equify instrnments - at cost dunguoted)

Faulmech Hospitality Private Limited, a subsidiany 120,722
1,997,332 (31 March 2021 - 1,597, 332) aquity sheres o TNR 100ench, fully pid-up

Lest | Provisien o impaicntent 1a valuzof Dvestioent m sabsdiany 49,733}

Asat
F1 Bharch W21

7LD

slasale gLt oUngualsd ivestmeats 120,722
zgate amount afimypairmen: in valne of invesimenls 9,722

Non-ewrrent inuneinl assets - Lunoy Asar
31 March 2023
T relatvdd parlics
Loan to subsidisry® # (Refer notz |2 IHE6T
220,667

120,72
49,722

Agat
31 March 2021

192277
192,277

# Lean to sahsidinn represents eniount given te Paolmeek Haspitality Private Limited carrvinginterast 20 12% paard reparable as par mumal consent berweer panies. Lean 15 given for

general comarzte ind project expenses.

# Inciudes interestaccrued on lomn to subsidiary amounting to INR 87,351 {31 Mareh 2021 - INR 4,304}
Ligans snd ad ta specificd person
A 31 March 1022 i b Lolal loan & A& 31 March 2021 & ta Total loan &
Tvpe of Borrower 4 an 31 March B B RCE I L advances
Relsted Padies s Lo 192,277 L0,
Moseurrent fmancial assets - Others Asat Asat
(Tirecured, considored g 31 March 2022 31 Mrch 2021
Bank deposits with maturity mors than 12 manths o the reperting date® # 1560 1782
Secuniy depasds 661 TR 64,323
67,738 66,417
* Includes bank deposils vndst lizn gnosnes w MR 1,442 (31 Mach 2021 - INR 1,734)
¥ msluding interest neerved oo bank deposits INR L8 (3] March 2021 - INT1H15)
Income tnx asscts {net} Azat s ut
31 March 2022 &1 Wiarch 2021
Tax deduelad # soorce 373 3538
6373 3534
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Income tax

A: The major eontponents of income tax expense/ (income) are
Reeognised in profit or loss

Recopnised directly in Other comprehensive income

Fov the year
ended
31 Miarch 2022

Farthe year
eniled

31 March 2021

Befor tax 75 (33)

Tazx impact - -

Aller tax 75 (53)
B. Reconciliation of effective (ix rate (tax cxpense and the accounting profit multilplied by Company's domestic tax cate)

For the year ended Far the yeur ended
31 March 2022 3 Mareh 2021
Y Amount Y Amount
Loss befare tax {655,795 (621993
Vax wsing the Company’s domestic tax raw 2517 (165,064) 2517 (156,543
Maa recognition of daferred taxes on temporary differences 223 {14,646 (25.51) |38.685
Hoa-deductible differences (021} 1,388 10.53) 3,303
Mon-convertible debentures (2824} 183,200 - -
Others |05 (AH78Y .87 (5.445)
C. Deferved tax assels / linbilities
Asat Asal

Deferred tax assets

31 Rarch 2022

31 Murch 2021

Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 1002211 818,832
Provizion [or employee benefits 2493 3,009
Disallowance ws 438 of 1he hemoe-lax Act, 1961 59718 &
l.oss allowance [or doubttul debis 230 149
Impairment in value of investments 12514 12,514
Others 35,107 43,077
1,012,293 208,452
Delerred tax Uabilitles
Property, plant and cquiprnernt, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assers 131,093 112.675
Nown-¢otverlible debentures 200,057 »
331,150 112,675
Deferred tax assets (net) 781,143 795,807

Deferred tax (asseis) linbilitivs recognized *

* As at year snd, the Company has significant unabsobed deprecialion and carry forward husiness losses as per Ineome Tax Acl, 1961, In view of absence of reasonahle
certainty of sufficiznt fitiues taxable profils, deferred tax assets has heen ioeognized Lo e extent ot deterred tax liabilitics only.

0. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2022

Balance nsat  |Movement during,  Recognised Recognised Balunce ns at
Particulars | Apri 2021 FY 2021-22 in ;r!:rnzl‘g;;iluf;;lg mF[\)!(i:éIIu-r;;g ST o
Propery, plant and equipmant, capital work-in-progress and other (112675 (18418 - 3 {131,003
intangihle asacts
Fon=convertible debentures £ (2000573 - - (2000573
Impairment i value of mvestments - lstE - S - 12,514
L nabsorbed business losses and depreciation B4R 833 133378 - - Lo02.2101
Loss allowance for doubrfil debis 149 101 - 250
Digallowanes w's 138 of Tneome-tax Act, 1951 - 32718 - - 59,718
Frovision fur employes benefits 3008 |316) = - 2493
Others 43977 {3870 - - 35,107
[ Total 795.807 (14,665) . 2 781,143
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31 Mareh 2021

Dalance as at | Movement during| Recognised in Beeaguised In Balanve 15 at
i I Tae ) i 3 ; > i iy
Farticulirs 1 April 2020 Ty 2020-21 el]lltl%rul;':;f;r]l-g HY UL.JZ:-:;::;% Iy i R aa
Properly, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and athar (48.507) (&4 078) (112,675)
intangible gszets 5
Diizallowance u/s 4386 of meome-tax Act, 1901 5,767 (3,767} - -
lmpairment in value of investments 12,514 i . — w00 sl
Tnabsorbed business losses and depraciation §52.076 196,757 i : 212 833
Lese allowenee for doubtful debis 179 (30} - 149
Provision for eunployes benelits 3,081 (672) = 3,002
Others 11,502 32,475 3 43977
Total 637,122 158,585 - - 795,807

F. Tax Losses carvied forward

Tax losses for which ne delerred i asset was recognised with 2xpiry date as follows

As at

31 March 2022

Amount Kxpiry Date
(Financial Year)

Business loss 37,570 P23
Busitess loss /0,500 2023-24
Business losa 127,296 2024-25
Business loss 236,619 202525
Business loss 494,405 Wa-27
Business loss 261,739 HA7-28
Businzss lngs 445,297 A¥IR-29
Busiress loss 422,097 2032830
Unabsorbed depraciarion 1,896,360  Mever expire

Asat

31 March 2021

Armgunt Explry Date
{(Mimancial Year)

usinzss loss 63 2021-22
Businzss loss 37570 202223
Buginzss lozs 60,500 2023-24
Pusiness loss 127,294 2024-25
Businzss lo3s 23a,619 2025-26
Business loss 494 405 2026-27
Businzss loss 261,739 2027-28
Business loss 445207 2028-20
Unabserbed depreciation 1652 544 Mever expirs




Bargue Hatch Privaie Limided
Motes 10 dhe rancial statwmonts foe the year ended 3L March 2022

Fatitay

in

L

13

dehnEs Goee i Thediens Riepees 700

‘-

Orther non-current assets

(Finveemrasd sideepied e

Ioventyriey
ferfived il dower of cosd o pel reclivehle valve)

Fosdand beverags
Stores i opelaling supaliess

Curvent fi ial asgeis - Trade

R e F R e

Asat
31 March 2u22
LR

12019

Asal
31 March 2021

14,701

Asat
31 March 2022

1278

22

Az at
31 Warch 2011

2 i

As at
31 Moarch 2023

As at
31 Mlarah 2021

Unszeurad, considered sood 13357 11,784
Unsecurad, cradit impaired iR 594
16392 12,378
towance for bad end douhtnd debts [EER]] {594}
185397 LL, T
a3 Ihe Compony's axposurs to credil and cureney csks, end Toss allowances relored to trade recervables ars daclazed o Mas 42
Tende reveivables peeing sehedul
As sl 31 March 2002
Omrzianding far folloswing perinds from due dak of pavment
Farticulars Lass Wiz 6 migniths | 6 months - L year | L- Zyears | 2 -3 years trlore than 3 years Total
Undisputed Irade ;zceivaalas  conside 13 081 u 194 9 - - 15,397
puted Trode receivables — creds i - Gd 05 343 B 3 5|
A5 ot 31 March 2021 ,
1r a for ing periods from due dale of payment
Particulars Leas thom 6 months | & monthe - Lyear | L- 2yenes | 2 -3 years Mave than 3 years Total
Undisputed Tride recsivables — comsdercd good 11235 60 si7| 1 5 11,784
Unelisputed Tredi reeeivables — sodit inpaired - - - 151 413 34
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13

Carrventfinancial asseis - Cash and cash cqoivalents

Cash on band

Batarcer with bonks !

- 00 current aceoumts

Bank depnosits with anwinal maturity ofless than 3 months #

* including mévrest aseried on bank deposits INE 4 (21 March 2021 - INR 1)

Current financial assers - Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents above

Rank depasits due to maturs within |2 months fram the reporing date*#

# Inchides hank deposits under lin amounting to INKE 200 (31 March 2021 - [NE 81,7500
# including misrest accrued on bank deposits INE 841 (31 Murch 2021 - INR 1,198)

Current financial assets - (Others
Labilled vevanue

Gravernment prant &
Fecoverable from subsidiasy

Asar
31 Mareh 2022

1,335

42,736
27,504

Asat
31 Mareh 2021

71,615

Asal
31 March 2022

04,834

Asal
31 March 2021

04,834

Axatl
31 March 2022

Asal
31 Mareh 2021

8,308 1318
982 71
. 18
9,311} 4,077

4 he Company is availing sipurt ineentve wider Sevios Exports Trom india Schene (SELS) Under the seheme, the Company is eomitled o receive SEIS

licenses based un the annual earnings in foreign curency, These licenses can be utilized Ly the Company or sold in e mwkst. Ducing the v

r, (e

Company has ecognised income of INR 251 (31 barch 2021 — TWE Nil) and has recoverable balance of [NR 982 (31 Mach 202] — INR 731) as at he

batlanes sheet dave, During the year, the Company has writien ofF TR NIl (31 harch 2021 - TNR 4373

Oiher curvent assets
(Tinseeured. considered goodi

Balame with government authoritios
Adbvance to supplicrs

Prepaid eepenses *
Otherreceivables

Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 Marcch 2021

#Ineludes current paction of non-current prepaid expenses amounting b TNR 507 (31 March 202 | INR 339)

Asser beld [or sale

Assol held for sale

68,508 26,540
1845 14,452
11,386 4,829
5,031 0,374
97,170 126,276
Az at Asgat

31 March 2022 31 Mureh 1021
D0 T, 000
b, 00} 0




Barque Ilotels Private Limited

Hoiex Lo the Nnancial o

Gl esnitiz o in Diddicin Ruwecs (0
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13 Eyuity share capital

Authorisod share capital
Coguty shares of [MR 10 coch

Tssued, subsedbed and fully paid up

quity sharss ol [N LD gach

) ftaconeiliarion of the equity shires outstanding et the heginning and at the end of seporiog year

Authnrizer shave o

Althebe

v of the year

Add - lssned auring the vear
Dalunce at the end of the year

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
Al e boginding of (s yoor

Akl bssuctl during e vea
Dalanee ot the end af the year

b} Rights, preforences and restrictions sttached to equity shares

Ll Companty has ouly coe elass ol equily shines
roeGive divadond ps and when
el preferencisl pmounts. The di

Asar Al
31 Mareh 2022 31 Macch 2021
HNumber ol dees Amaunt Member of shares Amount
38,378,575 ELE] A L0 30,50
RO 33,7900 050000 300,50
2B 37E.080 383,751 30,0405, 105 = >
35375080 38, 7E 30,045,105 300,46l
For the yenr ended Fro fhe year ended
31 March 2122 31 Mureh 20210
TNumber of shores Amaunt Mumber of shares Amannr
208,500 30,051,000
2 A3200 . -
8478075 383,700 230.050,000 300,560
An0daG, 109 3041
30.046,105 J0d.Aé1

c} Betails vl sharehnlders halding more than 2% equicy shares [e the Company and equity shares held by the Tnlding Compamy

Mimne of shareholder

B

shaves on INE W each

SAaMEL Hatels Limited, Eolding Compeny *

1 equity shars is held by M= Ginea 103 834 nesnines sharcizkles

Az porreeandsatihe Compay, ioc]

ling its cogistir o7 sl

h lzgal nd -

ficial hip of sharesz.

Asal

31 March 2023

Number of shures

A5

8, if hlding

I

A

buvang e per vahe of TNR 10 por share. Ench holder of cquity share is entitlad © one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled te
e In i evenu ol liyaidadon of the Compaay, te lolder of squity shaces will be ectitled oieeive wining assets of te Company, aker disgibeuion of
strsbution will b in propartian (o Lhe numbar of equity shoras held by tha sharehel dara

al

31 March 2021

Numbar of share:

LN i

Wa of helding

LI

Cuemnbers wnd elher declaragons recsived fom sharchalders regading benzfeinl besest. g above duuelaakliog

) Bl shiras by been sdloved withaws prymen o sash or by way of banus shares or bough bash duiag the pedud of Tive years iemudiately prosuding the Balange Sheet dato

o) Relfer Mote 20 for shares reserved i respee] 0 F

B Termy of

As per the torms of the deb
(TCODs) will be compulsar
conved all the FOCT into ey

% af Fully O

12 cred no mierest w

aciree Lo the d
¢ and wandaterily converible e aguiny sha
shnrza ot ans tie wlihin 15 davs o gwing nelice i he Company e per Gollowing conmmion lemy,

Connpulacrily Convertible Teboniuns [~

ily Converrible Debeanures (SFCCDs™)

aliers til

puty within 1 g

LR

1 27 Seprombe

r 2017 fram the dare of allotment. The fully gompulaoily oz 1
ol al F2-20 yeers frem (he date ofalleement Holders of FCCTr ero ntitled to

ible dubeny

Cravercien Terms

My of
debernires as at
31 March 2022

Mussber of debenlares

s at
31 Mareh 2021

Dt o ullost et

Last dute of
conversinn

Conversion al Berate ol bl e far l:\'cr,\_' FOCDof R 104 gach, |
eapuily shme ul NG L0 shall be isued ala premium of THE 04,

|
=1 564000 | 24 Segwaber 200

1 L2535 100 Ua July 2010
| 1215490 | [ENovember 2011 17 Moveniber 2031
— 1007585 31 AUgUst 2012 30 FLugust 2032

‘Lacal

538,075

FOCDs eoaverded to equity shares nr ¥ Oatober, 2001 a5 per nbeva convaraion fonns.

Details of primaiers staarelolding =5 af vear ond -

Asat 51 Marth 2022

Prumoter

LT No.of shares at the | Change during the | No.of shovesat the | %o of Tolal Shares ¥ chunge during the
heginning of the year yoar end af the jear year
| TAMIT Tetcls Limited {Uolding Compnny) 30,046, 105 B.I28.575 38,775,080 oo "
Asul 31 March 2071 >
Sn Fromoter No.ofshares al the | Change durine the | Mo of shuresat fe Trtal Shares ‘Yo ehinge during e
beginning of the vear year end of the jear yet
SAMH] Hetols Limited [Bolding Company) | 4510 " 0,000,115 T
—— -
P 0
A RE Lty
£
e
i o
o

2

-




Barguse Hueels Privaie Limiced
Wales dw the Goaneial ststements fae (he pear eoded 37 Warel 2003
Gt amoanre are i Indior Supees (D00, wiless otherwise samved)

1% Cilier vquicy Asat Asar
1 March 2022 1 Mlarch 1021

Secutities preoiin FIRANN
[atained earnings (1,521,733
Fyuity componest of concessional uvendlL il 18,690
Lquity componest of intepest free lo2as fom @olding company 2,193,783
Fguity enmponest of eonvertihle PIK obligation
Cyuity vunnprancal ol Ty counulserily conveniible debeutucs 135,174 |, 0L2, 068

735,228 UE, TS
a) Seeuritics premium
Flalunze ot the hegirning of the year 705,500 198,500
Add - Adklitioes made during the yaar THA0R =
Balanze ar the end of the vear 1,546,108 796,300
Securities pramium is used te record the prarpum received on issue of shezes. [t & utilized in azcordunee with the provisions ofthe Companics Al 2015
b} Retained eanings
Ralange ol 1he begirning af the year (3.521,753) (E899,7007)
Less far the year (635,799} (A1
Tramaferred Fom ather comprehensive neomes 73 53y
Dalunce ot e end ol e yeur (4,177,473) {3,511,753)
[stained carnings represent (hs amount of sesumwlated profis(losses) ol the Compamy.
o) Other hensive liconie - 1 rement of defined benetir plans (net of fax]
Dalance at e begir Al e year - -
Remezsurenznts oFdefined bensfit lasiliy / asset (net of tax) 73 [53)
Tramsfird 1 relained ewrnings (75} 53
Balanze ot the end of the year - -
Femezsurernsnls oldsined Densll Baoiliy © assel coonprises acluadal gaing and beses,
) guicy eomponent ol wasessivnad weerdralt fucility
Balancr st the begivaing af the yoar |8 A% 1RG5
Halanze st the encd of the year 18,620 18,690
Lais wepresents tha mmpsct of overdealt feility avaiied by the Company ar ar miterest rate lower than the markst interest rate.
&) Equity P i ol fully pulsorily comvertible debentures
Dalance ot the kegirming ofthe year 1.012,08R 1,012,068
Coversion of fully compalsarily convertible dat mto squity shures (B32.80m '
Hniance at the cnd of the year 179,170 1,072,068

) Equlty eomponent of convertible PIE abligatian
Halance at 1he baginmng of the year - -
Lettial recaguition of equity companent of canvertible PR abligation T35 80

Tl gain om R wuh cernpmen) o eoesrtible PO abilziaion {14,401

731,401 s

mool ity

Ralarce sl 1l ead ol

This represects the fair valee nf consectible PLE obbgation of rone-canverible debeniures imsned during the curtent year (Foafer Mols 20,

Comyurtible PTE abilpuion is purion ol ereed interes oo (e nooccanverdible debentures

areom e with the SANHT dhares aliment apreement (aled 22 Dielobar 2021 beleceen e O, b

averted inlo equity sharss of SAMHL Hotele Linated {holding company) i
g conrpany ol debentue trustee,

wy' b o

Frlwaiion teclinfgne wsed to deternine faly valne
Saeclfic raluation techiniqus nsed o value ceovertibie UK obligation molude:
- 1he fair value for equity cormponent of convartiole PIK obligation is vakoulated using disconnted cash Jows metkud and monie carlo simula

Divatiy of significms unebservabie inpres for measwrrnien af falr rafues

Signilcant unabservable [nputs nger-r berween signifdeant woebservisble inputs sod T value
Tajully i nfcomven ik PUK [Other equlty)
Enrciprisc veie of SAMHL Horels Limited (hoklisg company) The estimated fis value wonld inereese (decrease) iMihe BV wes highsr (lower)
RV

[Fisk Goe rawe (3] March 2022 - 46017 5 3 Mach 2021 - WA This estitated Gir salus would Gecrsase (neesass) Uil viss Des s was higher (lower]

Wolailiey vaie (31 Merch 2022 - 92.20% ;31 March 2027 - WA |Ths estimated fhiv valos wiokl inerewsse (decreae) i de volatiity rate was higler | lower)




Barijue Hutel Private Timiied
Wotes oo the Anancial statements far the vear ended 31 Marvch 2022
(A wemmonents ave i fudian Rigees (D, idess otferoie shifed?

Senziivity arafpsiy

Far the fair va'ue of equity com;
atiser inputs sanstar, woukl Ly

allawing eflecls.

31 lurch 2022 tncrease Decrease
“Busitess valie [34% wipveinent) = = {33,500 ————— 33,200 3
Risk Fecate (L34 movement] Jon {804
Wolatilicy raes (1% movement 700y GO0
i) Byuily componenit of inferest free loans from Walding company
Balatce at the beghning ol Ui year 1,192,783 1,636,617
Al ; Loan fromn Hulding Conpany recerved - recoanized diectly in olher eguity 234,550 33, LAf
Ealanos al U encd ol D year 1,447,333 1,152,783
Asat Asat
Movermenl of Telerest Tree loans from Holding Company 31 Marvh 2022 31 Mareh 2021
2,436,416 1,142,306

Tz Fuuity componen oo initdsl meognition (2,451,028 (2,156,478,

(14,212) (13,212)
Add: [nitecest 2xpense accielinn 14212 14,217
Closing beiagcs of liability compowent - -
Equity comannent on iniial recognitian 2451,018 L19GATs
Less: Lag inpazt (3,605 (605
Tquity eomonment {et of fax) 2,447,333 1,192,783

A% al Asat

Tl of Fully pulsority convartible debentures 31 March ZDZZ 31 March 2021
Tutal proceeils 1,530,608 1,530,653
Lesg: Bguily sommonen! oninibal reeogniion and subsequent reclassification of fabilicy companant iy equily (1,604, 6697 (1,604,665}
TRl

(73,071} (73.971)
Less: Liaaiity compenent teversed o conversion of TODDs (383,110 (383,110}
Addlz [nieres! expense areration 457,08 | 427,081
Clsirg halanie ol Habikly romponent - +
Fauity vurmpunent on fritin] reeogrition L G0 G [L604,065
Lt T it (254,570) (234,570)
Leas: Equily sompanent onsnitul recognition {1, 170.829) {33,031
Equity aonpaneat fnac ol lax) 17TH1TH LO1Z,048

e of cowverible PEC chilicalion, feasunaily pussible changss sl the meponing date due te one of the saulicant wualses bk fnguts, halding

_ Profit or (1115.5), netof oy

FThis reprevents eqeity vomponent of fly eompuleccily convertible debenturas isand to SAMHET Heals Dimited (relding vomzony). Ducng the previous years, tams of FOCDs
have een madifed w.e £ 30 September 2014 f.e: the emapon rate Tas heen refuced W veros S per (he amended torme, entiee Gsbilite portion cledig interest sutstandieg as or 30
September 2014 has been transferied o ather equily during e previsns years basel on principles afind A8 The cormespanding defereed tae impact o suzh FOCTYS has alsa besry
adjustzd throagh other equity.




Bargue Hitdls Privace Thimiced

Mares o the G
| mrains are

ki1l

cinl sbateriieits Fior the yvear ended 31 Mareh 2072
Inclion Rugees (N1 wedens atle

ASnn-current financial Rahilitics - Bavimwings Al Asul
A1 Wlareh 2022 1 Mach 202

Frangal fisduion seeasd (e @ Lelow) :
L

lerm |aazs Aoe

fron el ddantusst (a1 Loy

Lemss Luuruern s ey af long-teres Boergings (rofes nate 29)

0,075

2,792,758

* incluging interest aceued nn non-eorwerthle dehesnies of TN 237257 (31 Sl 202 - 04

) Terut loans aked Deeon Ronacial instiilivg

2 Do the yeuareaded 31 darch 2019, e Cempeny g obe med e e B il fom L& FS FMoaoeial serviess Limital omoenang to P 3000000,

B The rervn foe was secursd by dollsong:

ta o 0l il vip ey shares by way of pledieeon (1031 2 shares of the Company hele by SAntHL Hetels Limlted and €70 100%: shnes of Pooliess Bospinlit Privete
baiciary cospany’) tell by the C ompe
2. Fiel clange by sy ol sooilublamegiz ened sorigage
iry SOmpAny s memed b apc bnildng,

st el rge by wey of Heooriby Intcrest ¢ by
Tstre bar wry oF hamatoestion o ie enrins olreor asesrz 2 G
Hrige b way of Lvpobecisiva ou ol] Tiked ¢ =npvieble shses perwhing o the Priv
Barse ueer Do) Seovie Breve Avconnl,

o immeehle feal assers Facledng momgage o leseehald sane) of the Draject [Bota presenl il fture), for Compeny's and

e | Asssis,

rnthosation B vlivg sobsennion ol Tesestu il vghts oDl e 2o
Project, beth prasent ood Riare.
hith prescir ang Aire.

€ Tezn Joam dnigrest cie Wik fiauncial msRuaces bass pate minus 2 00%, per v, walch was | LSS pes arrtan s a0 o closurs due e 26 Celober 2020 (31 Mapez

ANLB0, e wrmen), The germ lawn a=nesnr s orizinally rpayatls by byt et sepayment afier 3 years Eoi the dule of frst disbueement e 26 Apn 2008,

During tre year eided 31 Mot 2021 S Coimpaig Tl sviried Gor sension of lerm loan m conisenancs vizh he etrolac DGR Mo BF. ZL IR I0IN D
Bk of Trdia on & Augist 2021 o Resolution Premeverk for COY D=1 t-reluted Stress andes wivel IMR1SO0N was epaid o 23 S0l 2020 and rone g
Lepinid i 28 Colober 2020 Corough Bsuimes ol mimeesmeertih o deberires.

suid by Resarve
R fusn anpnn wis

Bk Mispseroisertible debeniures

& U 22 October 2021, Debentire Tt Deed (*DTD') was exevied Uetvesn Bargue Flotels Prvate Limived ¢t Cumpany”l. Paolméch Higaitality Private Cimitad twiolly ovned
sahaddinog of e Comgenyd, SAMET Folel fiel [hobling eozrpany ') ene Visma [ECL dinde) Cimnited {° Debeoture Tragees™), Basls aforesid Debanmice Trust Deed Suiag the
enerent year, the Comipany bes fsusl 2850 unasted, seoursd, rad ble, ann-canvzrikle del of & faze walin: o TR 10,00, 00N eeel_ appeegting o DR 3350000 oo ¢ privale
Placemen Laals o Sag v Divesiusn Fond Do the Terms amd sondision, s23 ot in DT,

b. These nonscanverible dehennires arescenmed by flowing:

[} o firsl cenbing morigege on el immovsble assees o 2he Company end its subsidizry, Peulmesh Hospira Loy Pivate Liniad CSubeilae), bul present and S, frelodie
Company*s and Sunsidiary’s hate: propetics,

[1shm FTust kv cherpe coall i movableasses (oumml, mer-curen: sod movebl Fred dss2s) of the Comeany and the Sthsiciary, beth present aud fitine, Deludiie bt wo
e

wabivle i ot ber man-eorrmil ssans

b in i, whivi is not 2 lnder o the Oroap. oo oteal fnd

it mavable properies inchuding nlamend machiery, machioe spares, ools ad aoesssin e, (i e, fivure,
i) the permuzed investrents which neludes grverninent seonirics, Peed depesis in sy sdwhiled comuersi:
deheschemes,

iy insargible assets,

ssmes ol thes o paig s
eld fir triadivg’
vy all freestments and Fank aceouns of she Cempeny and the Sehsidiary ard monies lisg thesin

Vlsz Subsiciany, e luding buaot lmied o the reczivabiss of e Compayand e S0 bsioiary neliing cas i pard, st
serials, consamable stores and spates, hanisdelts, rpertting eash fate ol shods T tads, sapl

fed it firer paiking esciosive vhurge veer ol rihts ard rosebeahles of the Holting Crmpany which inchidzs 1l amonars receiveble by tie Holfing Company (whether o4 epesetonul
payments o otberwise] from the Company ineiding boz oot limeed @ che receivaodes of ti2 Holdiog Coupaiy duder Gz itecsdiopany foan weresmenl duted | Zeoember 2007 (ay
emendad an 1 ARl 200 9) Fr nsearied ad Tnkeres: o e pords deoss of T 2436,100

(7 u st ranbsing ewelusive plodge aver thesheres and seonrisies conarmining (70% sharetoldiag Leld by the Uolding € ompazy 1= the Compiny suve and excep:
bya nnmines sharehalder of the Holing Conpeoy

| =ity shere reld

(2} the Carpeante Guaraniess provided by Bauimech Hispiwlity Private Limised in fsvonr of debenmee rmostee

(03 2T emznmbramess erated v o be eearad o seseethe 4,000 wn'sed, soevred, vedesmmable, non-comvertible debentures of i foes value of IV 10,00,000 toch, negregitng tn INE
A, 0, 5 ARHE PV Debeamires™} fsaued by SAMHT IV Business Hotels Palvatz Limied MEAMHT I in favour of she debenre hn'vers, ranidng pan passiinne ae the Rargue
Deientiies dod 11 SAMITTY Debeniires.

6, A per Bebennire Trist Deed, eaurn oo pow-vonsertiole debities s of Cash PIK wod Cureeriihle B
) Al times cueng, e e o mn-woverfible Jebeiures, the debenture holder 5 entitled to 5 minimam [RE of wot less than 2131 e s (Le L93% per ol
companmdes Moty

(1) Ceal: PIK G an vnnan that weould give the debontee |

corerible debensres & b be servided as 1% poa, payable mestily for the Gost 1 ye

beler s veuen aqnal o 14,5% aer mnnm eosponnd ed torthly ducing the reon of debewces, Cash PIK ua)
a1 14.5%

Lo G non-

pyiehle teuintHy for bualized b ol 3 yeur (us the weene applieds’e) and

eecordanze it e SARHL shoces alloen dgemen daied 12 Oulebe 2021 hetwem the Compuny, hoidng sompary and debimmme st

(i b Durng e current year, the Company Uebmiure hojder upd serast of 4% ot te goomial v e of ench non convel lithe debentuies seusd e pdliionil erein

(v diftes lock-fnpedod for e noneconrerbblie dobenmwres of 12 montn Harm 21 date oF fesr dishose e P el 2AF e debepiores wie podesnalle witin 4 years al (he
# firsr disnnramenr, Fottine, the pon il Lekeri] udl be lezorily cedegmed within 30 duys of cccurenze of an

st il the Crespuny om at the sre nf 4 yeses from dnbs
IPLY zvent.

o) The Company clid nat have amy eanting el dicte Ty Vi pepnigrrie ol T sl St Thise bave hest o materiil lvan sovenans defulbs and thare

lies by i BT st e i) any leoker Tor




Burgue Hitals Privale Timilad
Hutea to the fineneinl statements for the year ended 31 Viareh 222

G2 wemnints are i Brpeer CG0, nndess athensse srated)
21 Mog-enrrcol fimancial labilitics - Leesc linbilitics Asat Asug
S Moreh 2022 51 Mareh 2021
Leise Lirhiklies {refer note 471 1651182

3,098

12 Mun Currenl frnvinl linbiliies - T rade paralbis A at Asar
31 March 2022 &1 March 2021
Ttz payub'es.
- total cutscan fing dees of cucro entemeises aod siabl cote pises & =
- tolal cutatanding dics of cre v baiprizes o sl et eises 2
BT =
i Ralier nnee 46 for dsalnsures unde Mo, ard Beldinm cpevsss Developmen fun, 2000 Lokl

2 disduwed in b= 43

b gl to teode ey

b3 The Carcpane's sxposave 1 e al i

Trade payables Ageing Seledul:
As ar 31 Barch 2022

Ouislaniling for Bllowing periods from due dute of pay ment

[Pariicnbirs Accrued expenses | Loas thom | year| 12 yeam 23 yeurs Tfure than 3 years Fotsl

MEME =t i 2 : = . 2
Orhes - 44t 3L Ll - SRR
Tutsl = A4y 1314 2,104 - 2,444

As o 31 Mareh 2021

itstunding for fillowing parind: frem due date of payisent

Fartioulars Awcruedegpenae Lo than 1 yeor|  1-2 yoara 23 yunrs Wlors than 3 yrars Potsl

MASME - = ¥ -
Crthers - - - - - 4
Total F = i o T
23 [n-currenl provisisns s at Asat
31 March 2022 31 Muarch M2

Provision for cunplnyee benefits

Cranity (Reer otz 14} 2 L2327
Compersated absanoes (Refor noie 34 2438 ALGL
4846 379
i ber non-carcont Babilities A at Aaat
A1 Mareh 121 31 Morch 21
I pezesteil m advance w2l Bl gal
HI41E 47651
=] Corrend Menel liebilides - Ducoor lng Aj at Adat
31 Murch 2021 31 Murch 2021
Gl maies of lomg-erm bormavengs (Reler nete 200 2,706,472
- 3,706,972
b4 Cwrront finun. linkilitica - Licase liabiitics Asat Anot
31 March 021 31 Vaech M2
Leass lighlites {reter acte 47 3 51378
17

Nopane”

e




Papspue Hulela Private Limived

Mades tn the finaneks
LW asont e i lidian

T

datements for the yosr oeded 31 Sarch W23
f

dargens {"OOU) wniess athenielse stk

Current Tnamcial labilitics - Trade pagaliles

Trade pavibles

e ool smuall s

- tool sutsticcing does of credilens cther than meens etlerprises acd small snismprizes

anp Do ot 40 T Disclusures widen beliveo, Sl el bizlion Tospcles Develupiosin Ao, 2000 CelsbdZ00

b leler note 42 Lor dues 1o elated pertoes
e} The Corpeny s &3 20802 b swversy

Liquidity

Trade payables Agelng Selodule
As a3 Maceh 2022

s related b Lade ey

s s ddisaloscd i Mee 43

Adat
31 March 2022

Agat
31 March 2021

|51 -
119,254
L2 314 1,231

£ perinils Fom due date of pay ment

Furtienlirs Arcruetl vapemses | Lesy tkun L yoar 1-Z years -3 ¥bary lare then 3 years “Tortal
T - L538 - - -

b Lleogt - - ERT

275 121624 - pkll
Asat 3L Mareh 2031

Dt s Following pertods From due date of payment

Particulars Accrued cypemses | Less thin L year| 12 years 33 years More than 3 vears Taal
MASE : c
Others ABA2T 71335 G055 159 248 129,234
Total =R A8 42T 71,33 0055 ] 24 10354
Corvent Gromeal labilithes - Oihen Axat Azat

Eaupluyee sedateed purables
T bl o capiel assels

Other current Babilities

Salsinize Fon custonirs
Theferrel goverenen it =
Tncnes reveiv ad o advene
Sty duzs poy

S Mprch 2023

A1 Alucel ZOEL

282 3306
e . = Lgu13
L6 13459
JAaar Ay at
3 Wlarch 2022 31 March 2021

T35

ARapresnts ol assisiees veeived wder e Capor, By L Capitel G
prapets Undes ae Schem, the Comzany 35 rezeired o discherge Ge obli

2l ndew i Lk form of custom: duty eempticn oo impot of wwpre equipmenl fur usein s kol
weers, Thadetered reveaue s rdeesed to procit or locss mratio of SelBlmee: of nssceiated expod

abifEntans: The Company bes cooopmiset neorce ol KK 2,525 08, Mareh 2000 - IR 22207 indesihis scheme dunng e vear.
Current preavishomg As il Aa at
51 Mareh 2022 31 Murch 2021
Provisten for coployec el
Creluily frafer nats 14) il 200
Compenzated abuenees meler nute 340 LaT3 1313
i,a 3512




Barque Hotels Privae Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the ye
AT amnanis are in Sedian Rupeey ("000)

rended 31 farch 2022
cifierwfse sbares)

31 Revenue [rom operations For the year ended

31 Murch 2032

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Sale af praduces and veivices

-TRoom revanne 460,351 T33 04T
-Food and beverage revenus 70001 ABT7L
- Regrention rnd other sarvices 4705 5373
544,055 206 091

Ciefier OPErRITngG reverues
- Bpave rentals 2,520 225
2,920 2254
546,978 298345

Contract Balinees

The conteast liabilities primarily relae to the advance consideration received fom customers for which revenne is recognized when the performince sbligation
is over! services deliversd. Advance callection is recognized whan paymenr is received batore the relsted performance oblgation is salisBed, This neldes
advances recerved from the customer towards roomsirostauranthanquets. Revenue & recognised onee the porformanee obligation {s met ie. on room stay! sale
af food and beverage / provision of banguel serviecs,

The contrict assets primacly relai b excess of revenue over mvoeing (e unbdlled revenue).

iz

Countract linbilities

Asar
31 Murch 2021

Az at
31 March 2021

- Advance From sustomers 3633 Ta0T

- Ineome reeeived in advance #7651 Q2R
Contrast asscts

- Unbilled revenus 8327 3318

Nate: Conzidering the nanwe of husiness of the Company, the above conmact lishilines are generally materialised as revenue and contraet desels are comveried

lite sash/riads reszivabies within ths same operating cvele.

(ther income

Trersst ingoma from financial assers at amortisad cost

For the year ended
31 Wiarch 2022

For the year ended
31 Wiarch 2021

- bank deposits L1193 260
- securily deposits = 7
CIUVEITITICTIL Zran. 2,775 2257
Unwimding of dissoumt om seeurily daposit 5,588 AT
[nterzston ingome tax refund - 1347
Interescon advanee reeovierable 3,051 T2
Tiahilities written back s 1R
Met gail on falr valuation of cquiny componcnt of coavertible FIK obligation 14,400 -
Amortizaton el meoine received i advance 5233 3,233
niscellaness inceme 299 336
33,0545 23,364

Cost of materials consumed

Consumptinn of food und beverages

Liventory at the begioning of he year

For the year ended
31 March 2022

49,817

For the year cuded
31 March 2021

Add: Purchases jrda
luventory ot the end of fhe year (2,000) -

47517 37434

34 Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2421
Salaries, wages aud bonus 120,069 133,889
Contribution f provident fund and other funds [refer ‘s’ below) 3776 10,288
Compensated ahsences (refer ' helow) 145 718
Gratuity cxpense (tefer e below) 734 713
Stall welfare expenses 13,739 13243
143,487 158,851




Burque Mocels Private Limited
Muotes to the finaucial slatements for the year ended 31 ¥arch 1022
(Ml arsiires aee v ddicn fupees (0N, anldesy aiienvize wated)

o Delined Concribution plans

The Compiny makes contributions, determined as a specilied pereentage of employee salmies, in respect of qualilying cmployes lowards Providen: Fund,
Labout Wellane: Fund and Empleyees’ Stare Insurance, which are defined conwibation plans, The Company has no oblizatons other than 1 make the specified
contitbutions, the conlibulions are charged fo profir or loss as they accrue. The amueunl Tocogniszd as an 2xpense towards conidbution to Provident Fund,
Labonr Weifare [und and Lmployees' State Insurance for the year aggregatsd w INR 8,776 (31 March 1021 -TNR 10,288) Ako reler note 40,

b. Compensated absences
Lhe Priveipal sssumpdons used in decarmiining the coutpessated absences benefit vbligation are s given below:

Particulars

Diigoniing cate (p.a)

Pulume salary mereasc ( paa)

¢, Defined Benefit Plan

Tor the year caded
31 March 2022
g,

407
5.0

For the year ended
31 March 2021
k)

453

.00

The Conipany bay @ defined henefir gratity plan. Cvery emplovee who bas complored five vears oc more of service gels a gratuity nn departurs ar 13 doyvs
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed vaarof service. 'Lhe scheme is not fendad
The following tables summarics @ic companents of net benelil expetss recopnizd in profit or loss and amonnts recognized i the Balance Sheet [or the said

plan:

a) Lupense recognised in Profio or Loss

Clurrent service cost
Tnterest easi
Total included in 'Employee benelis expense’

b} Remensuvements recogoized directly in vther comprehensive incamea

et astuarial {grin)loss recognized in the year fow:
- changes in demographic assunprions

= changes in financial assuiptions

- changes in experience sdjustments

Amount recognized in ather comprebensive income

¢) Changein present value of benefit obligation

P'resent value ef ubligaton as st the heginning of the yanr
Current setvice coar

Toferest cost

Remcasuecmunls of delined bene it lahilite £ asset (nst of tax)
Benefits paid

Fresent value of obligation as at the end of the year

d) Amounts to be recopnized in Balance sheet

Present value of the defined benefit abligation at the end of the year
Fair valuz of plan asssts at e smd af the year
Tunded stutus

Met liahility reeognized in the Balance Sheet

Mom-curment
Current

Tor the year ended
31 March 2022

For the yzar ended
31 Mareh 2021

Gl% 513
115 100
T34 713

For the year ended
3 March 20227

For the year coded
31 Mareh 2021

(9822} {10,312)

(1, 104) 1522

10,853 5843
(73) 3

For the vear cnded
31 March 2022

For the vear ended
31 March 2021
1,081
Gl3

Asat
31 Wiareh 2022

Asat
3 March 2021

2831 2397
2,851 2327
2020 I,727

831 B0




Barque Motels Frivaie Timited
Notes o the financal statements Tor the year ended 31 Barch 2022
(A s cee In frdion Supees {OU0) wnless efier e siated)

&) T'he Friocipal assumptions used in determining the gratuity beneit abligation are as given below

Asar As ai
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Feanomic 1ssumptions W i
[Hscounting rote (p.a) 497% 4534
Fumure salary increass (p.a) 5.00% 200

The dhsconmt rate 15 generally based vpon the markel yields availabls on Gossmment boeds at the sccoumting dals with @ term hal matches thal of the
lizhilivies.

The salary growih rale kes gecount ol mildien, senooty, promelico and other relevant Gactoos on long leon basis,

Az at Asat
Demographic ussumplions 31 Mavch 2022 31 arch 2021
Retirtmnent Age {vears) 58 38
Withdrawal Rate
Ages
Up o 30 Years 4%, Ri%:
From 31 to 44 years 24% 2425
Abaove 44 yoars B4% Bty
Miormlity rate 100% Trdizn s 100%: Mndian assured lives

Tives morkality (2002« 14)  moality (2012 « 14)

[} The Company beat estimate of expense for e next year i3 INR 655 (31 Mareh 20212 INR 650)
ili. Sensitivity analysis

Reazonably pessible chanaes at the repeiting date to ane of the relevant actaavial zssumptions, helding other assumptions constant, would have affscted the
detined henefir ahligation by the amounts shown helww,

31 March 2022
Ineresse * Decrease
Discount tace (1, 5% movement) an 32
Future salary grovith (0.5% movement) Sl (3l

30 March 2020
Tncrease * Decrease *
Diisgount rare (0,5% movement) {28 29
Furiwe salury orowth (0.5%: mavement) 28 (28]

Although the enalvsis does ot take seeount of the full dismibubion of cash Hows expeeted under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitiviny of
the usswnplions sow.

* Prosilive amownl Teprescils ercast in provision and aegalive aneanl ropresens degreast o provision

u Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Asat
Year 31 Muarch 2022
April 2022 March 2023 /3N
April 2023 March 20724 137
Apri] 2024- March 20235 263
Apti] 2023 March 2026 42
April 2026- March 2027 7
Apeil 2027- Mareq 2028 I
Aprl 2028 onwards 328
2,850
As af
Year 31 Warch 2021
April 2021- March 207272 200
April 2022 March 2023 842
April 2027 March 2024 210
April 2024- arch 2023 a5
April 2025 March 2026 i3
April 2026- March 2027 1
April 2027 onwards 532




Barque Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Warch 2022
(il ety e fn fudian Rupees (060, walzes etfiervise séafvd)

30

38

Finanre costs Fur the year ended

31 Murch 2022

P the yene cnded
31 March 2021

Interesl espensean fnancial abilities camed ol anocssd cost oo
P'eren ‘aan from firanesl nsokction® 141150 09
e cnnverthle debentures 66326
lulerasl expenae on lansa liabilitiesa 23 8R7 20,989
Uthen Lorowing cost 32914
Iiterest expense on delay in :Jcpu:s'll ot statutery dues 5,107 4,010
460,380 301,909

rest income on lean Finds amounting to INB 18205 (51 Saeh 202 ] < [MR20, 145

# it ol interast nearme on Ioan funds amauntmg to TR TE079 (31 March 2021 - INR Mil)

Depreciation and amortsatinn cxpense

Diepresiation on prope

;o plant and squipment
Apmarfizstion of Right-of-nse agsars

Aviorlizaion of intang ble ssscts

CHher expenses

Kales and laxes

Trariing expensas

Power and fuel

Fenl expenses (refer Mot 47)
Comumizsion

Manasenent and incentive foos
Bpatr s rnletancs

- Building

= Machirery

- Others

Lravelling expenses
Coenribnication

Insurance

Pravigien for bad and doubtfil dabts
lelevision expenses

Consumplion of stores and supphes
reneral adininiziralion exporscs
Centractual labour

Paymenl 1o auditors {refer Below) *
Lisgal and professional chargas
Govemivent srant written off
Adventisement and business promation
Miseellaneous expenses

*Payment to anditors
Statutory sl
Heimburzement of cxpensss

Oher aarvicas

Exceptional items

(3ain on lease wssets (robor Mot 360
Ceptal work-in progress waillen ol (refer Note 30)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Meat loss attributable 1o equity sharcnaliles

Weighted averame number of cutaly shares outstanding during the pertod for valeulaton
of basic £PS

Weiglited aversne nunther of copily shares outstanding duning the pured o caledlation
of dilulal PSS

Saminal value af equity share (MR

pershare (INR)

[futed earnings per shane (NI

Hazic =

For the yeur ended
31 Wlaceh 2022

Tor the year ended
31 March 2021

169.027 170571
17,751 13,397
2216 2,722
188006 186,500

For the year ended
31 Maorch 2022

Farthe year ended
31 March 2021

27770 1l ga6a6
474 G223
3G238 43 04
30501 15, 00t
45054 14,053
16,985 6,389
15,043 8078
14,266 363
391 47
3462 4,225
17641 19,065
3312 3009
400 =
2590 1955
27,535 18,945
2,971 2,160
30,148 13,472
2.043 LE71
79358 18,623
477
12,562 T
730 1,644
139,273 246,304
2000 | 400
43 151
F24
3,043 1,671

Far the penr ended
31 March 2022

For the year anded
41 March 2021

(2.044Y I’
= 2,618
(234 12,619
Bar the yenr eaded Hor the year ended
31 Mareh 2022 31 March2021
[655.793) (521,267)
30,050,105
3067268 o
30,046,105
4062268
10 14
(1923} (20.70)
(1915 [20.70)

* The ouestanding potenaal equiy shares have an avti-dilutive offect on FPR. [Tance, the same have ol buen considersd for caleulsion of Diluled sarmngs pe

share
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Motes to fhe Ainancial stutements e the year ended 31 March 2072

(il omeansiis elve da fgdiens Hupees CUDTH wpdEss oderin
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40 Contingent liabilities and comutidmen s

4

i

[t eken (o provided o)

Clintinzend liabilites
[i) The Compamy is suhject to legal proceedings and chams, o secount of Hosar land dispute: The Company’s managament does ot ressonably eopeol that these
lgzal actians, when wiimately cenchaded and deteomined, will bave a matiial and adverse effect on the Company's rosults of operstions or Inanctal condition

(i) The Conipany Lad received an nssezsment arder for finanzil year 200516 wherehy sn addiion of INE 1128 has been made to the tatal mcome of the Company
The Compury bas Gled an appeal before the Commissioner of Tnpome-tse (Appesls) againgt the said addirion. Thoring the eorrent year, fhe Campany bas sellled the
matter undat Vivad Se Vishwns Schema

[iif) “Lhe Company has raceived an asscisment erder for fnancinl vear 2016-17 wherehy an addition o INR 296,963 Lus beee nade o the fofal incoms of the
Company. The Company b flod an sppeal before the Commissioner of Tnoome-mx (Appeals) auainst the said addiion wiuch is pending for disposal. Based on the
merits af the arguments pul forvard, the Company 15 of the view that the owgome will be in its fivor and no provision is required o be created in the boaks.

[iv) The Company has recelved a penalty order w's 2710 of the Inoome-tax Acl, 1961 [or Guancial vear 2013-15 whereby o penalty has heen impossd on the
Company of INR (20 The Company has filad 21 appel betare the Commissioner of lneone-lax (Appeals) agaist the said penalty order which is pending for
isposal. Baszd on the meris of the arguments put forward, the Company is of the view thar the onteome will he in its Pavor and no provision & required to be
created in the bools

(v} The Company has recewved w peraly coder ws 2710 of the lsome-tax Act, 1961 #or financial yeor 2006-17 whershy o penaly las besn woposed on the
Company of MR 1,003, The Cumpany bas Gled an appeal before the Commissimer of Income-tax (Appeals) sgainst the ssid peealty erder which is pending o
disposal. Based on the medts of the arguments pat farward, the Compamy is of the view thet the vulcome will be i ils Givor and ne provision B required b he

sreabed mo U books,

(vi) In Febeuary 2019, Supreme Court of Tndin in its judgement clarified the applisabibily of allowaness thee should be considered to mensure obligalions undes
Froployees Provident Fund snd Mizesllaseons Provisions Ast, 1952, The Compuny bas been legally advised that there are intetpratative challenges on the application
ol judeement relicspeetively and as such doos not consider there is any probable obligatians for past perinds Tn the previus yem coded 31 Mach 2000, the
Compny had made a provision for provident fund conmibutien for the Guansial year 301819 in the hoaks of sceounts ambunting ta [MB 1,577, Based ou legal
advice, the Conpamy reversed the provissin mude G the period Apuil 2018 to February 2019 ameanting bo INE 1395 in the previous year ended 31 barch 2020

Commitments

(i) The Cornpaty hag wwailed custom duty exemptions under the Frport Promufion Capitnl Goeds Seheme of the Government of Tadia on import of capiial equipmen
[ur uge it its hotel projact Under the Seheme, the Company is required 1o dischargs the ablipation over 2 peciod of noxt 3ix vears: The Comipany®s export ohligations
mukstznding under the scheme aggrepate TVE ML (31 Mareh 2021 - [NR 15,140 [nef of eamings in fateign curreney]

Operating Segments

I'he Holding Company's Chict Excoutive Officer has been idenddfied as e Chief Operaing Mecision Maker (TCODM'), stnes b s espousible focall major desision
w.t T, Mhe preparation and cacvtion of busivess plan, preparation of budgst, plarming, dlance, meger, acguisition and espansion of any new fagility, CODM has
axaniined the Company's perlimmance fram product and geographic perspeetive and bas identificd a single busitess segment ie. 'Develaping and mnning of howls”,
hence no speecifie disclosures have been made.

A, Information about products and services
The Company primanly deals i one busivess namely 'Developing and runming of hotels", therefore product wise revene diselosure is not apphioally

B. Information ubout geopraphical ares
Tha Company provides servives (o oustomers in (i Fucther, theee nre no agsets locared outside Iniia.

C. Informution abowl major customers (from extemal customers)
The Carmprary duss nul decive pevenae from one customer which would smneunt te L0 per cent ar mote of the Company’s revanus




Bargue Hotels Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements fur the year ended 31 Marel 2022
A et e (e fndian fapees (), wiless atherwisg siated,

42 Related party disclosures

o) Related party and nature of related party relationship where control egisls;

Mature

Mame of reloted poarty

Holding Company

SANMHT Hatels Limited [Tomely known ss SAMUL Hotels Privace Limited)

Bubsilwry

Paulmech Hoapirslity Private Limited

b} Related portics with whom transactions have taken place during the current aml proyviowns yoar

Drescription of relationship

Mame of related party

Helding Company

SAMET Mol

Liniteil [fonmearly bnown as SAMIL Hotels Provate Limibed

Fellow Subzidiary

Aseent Hatsls b

wane Limitad

Subsid ey

Paulmech Hospialicy Private Limited

e} Related party transactions during the corrent year/ previous vear:

Particulars

31 Mareh

Holding Cowrpany

Fellow Subsidiary/Subsidinry

2022

31 Mureh 2021

31 Mareh 2022

31 Morch 2021

Unzecured loan given

Faulmech Hospitahoy Private Licuted

5,100

5500

Laan fram Holding Company received (diveetly vecognized in

otfier wqnity)

530,166

Conversion uf Tully compulsorily eonvertible debentires into
equity shares

SAMHI Hesals Limitad

B3Z RO

Interest incowme on wnsecored lan

Peulmech Hospitality Private Limited

23282

20,150

Cust allovalion feomn Hobding Com gy

SAMHI Hetels Limited

64094

20,504

Reinbursem eat of expenses incurred

Ascent Hotels Privare Limited

1

Cost sllocalion to subsidiary

]
F

Paul lity Private Limited

Initial recoenition of equity emmponent ol convertible PTEK
obligation

SAMEI Hotels Limited

TA5 800

et gain on Fair valuation of equity componeat of Convertible
PIK o

ot DR Ik
|SAMHI Hotels Limited

{12 400)

Iz addition ta ransactions mentonsd above,

~ Uhere was 2 pledse over shares held and ovened by the Holding Company in respect of berrowings fram Fnanzi

retitation oll 23 Oeteber 2021

- Uhe Holding Company has given a suamntee for refund of professional fec to InterCantinental TTatels Geawgp (Indie) Private Limited ("Manazer') ¢ InterContinental

Hutols Grovp (Aaw Pueilie) Pre Ll [icansnd') in coaa of carcellatinn of tha Operating Servicae agreament wiih the epurator

- The Company hed pledged freehold land of Peulmech Hospelality Preavats Lunted, subsidiany company in regpeet of loan abeined from financial institesion tll 23

October 2021

- The Holding Company had povided a corporate suarawee on behalf of the Company in respeet of term loan obizimzd from fnancial institution till 25 Octoher 2021,

< The Halding Company had provided a DSEA undertakang an behalf of the Company o respect af eom loan shtained from financial institutien till 25 October 2021

- Refer Wata 2 for secuniby @nd corporate coarenloe in espest oF ner-eomvarible debentures




Bargque Hotds Frivate Limited
Motes to the fnancial statements for the year ended 31 BMurch 2012
CAf amromns ace iy Beelion Kugees GO0, ailesi nibenwise siated]

d) Relnied party balonces as ui yenr end

Tarticuiars

Hi;ldm;(_ﬁ BATEP Y

Vellow SolsiciarySubsidiary

31 Mawreh 2022

31 March 2021

31 March 2021

31 March 2021

Equity comp it of Fully ¢

ily convertible debentures

SAMHI Hotels Limited 179,170 1,022,058 -
LEguily coniponent of concessinnsl overdraft facility

SAMHT Hotels Timited 18,4390 18,650 = s
Lquily coumponcnt of interest ree loans from Holding company

SAMHI Hotels Limited 2447333 2,192,783 - -
Equily comnponent of convertible PIE obligation

SANHT Holels Limited 721,400 # 3
‘I'rade payables

SAMHI Hotels Limited 55,899 14,247 i
Ascent Hotels Private Limited - - 54 -
Inveslmend in idiary

Paulmach Hospitality Private Limited e = (= 120,723 130,722
Pravision for impairment in value of irvestments (n subsidiary - - 45722 2723
Laan do subsidiary (ineliding acernad interest)

Paulmeach Hoapitality Private Limitsd - - 220,657 192,277
Other receivables

Paulmash Hoapitality Private Limitad - 2%

‘The ransactiors with related parties are made on terms equivalent o thase that prevall moanos lenglh transactuns and within the vodinay cowse of business. Cuustanding

Balances ac the year-end are nnsecured and are settlement acours in cash.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Cumpgany has nok led any |

naseasment is undertnken at each reporting nerind.

ol Bl

velativg to

ta owed by related partiza. This
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Sl e qre v fedion Rugees (O,
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s e ne aisd]

Finaneial instruments — Fair values aned ik i@

Ad Fivmneiol insrurnends iy eotegry sl fuir vale

The below table summarzees the ud, ois and wstimaces ads o determinng he
eieasired o amartied sost el e wleh fir vitdues o disolossd in e

i varlues of the Tuacil ostenens il @
mancial Fammenis. To provide an ndication abaut the reliabiley o

1oy Campary bag chigsilied ie Geansial nguments ince the three levels presaribed mader the ozountiog stadncd,

EMRE

$ mensured ai fa
P Bzpmts vszed i delam

vehe end (H)

Particulars

As ai 31 Maveh 2033

Level of Falr Yalue Through | Fair Value Fhrough Amertised Cast
Bierarchy Frokit or Loss (FY1PLY | Qther Comprehensive
[neome (P TOCH
Linaneial asels
Nog-cureemt
Loans - 220847
Oliecs
Boal itgmasles il oaarei ) e trge I2 wanty 1l pemoring cure - - L.560
Siwzirite duposits a 65,178
Cureenl N e == —le= _=——— 3 i
Tiade reseivaliss 15347
Cach ard cask equralents - - JLGLE
| Bk balanzes other than cesh imad sash eqw chove = SLEd: |
Gl oy L1}
Toadul Canaanm il an sely - = =l
Frinand il labilitics
Miii-current
d L 2 3 R
Lege lisbililivs = 3 - 165092
Trale pavibles R
Currend
Trade pavables
Leate linbililies 3 - -
Oibers - -
Tan fnanzial Gabilites — : =
Parliculars As at 31 March 2021
Level of Fair Wishue Througly Fualr Vealue Thiough
tierrchy Prufit ur Love (FVTP| Other Comprobonyive
Tieoeme (FYTOCT
Financial assels e _
[Mop-current
[ SOETTE - - 192277
Oithes |
B HRONES W eI mare o 43 atontine Few lre reporling date | - - 1782
Seeani ey 3 | = 64523
Current
Tl receivithbis | 5
Cag and Soslh e uitileal | 5 =
Binvl: balnszes ethes then goabh and eash eguivalaris abov. |
Cilers — I =
I
Lol financial assits | - B
|
Elllllﬁlll Linbsllities |
|
Non-corrent |
Liase lnhilcics el | - - 193,771
T — e -
Current
Borowings 2 - - 27054970
Trade pavebles - - 129,254
Leaze liabilities 2 i - - AR
Oifhors - - AT

Tuagaal Fima il Waiiilinie s

012854




Baryue Hotels Privase Limiied
Biils b the finameinl stocemend s fur fhe year eniled 310 Vireh 2082
(et mvreeats e i distion Kapees (DO, ess oteriie sieted

Eijmcial awsels and abilities measured at amortised cost - Fair value medsurentents
Alut AS T
i1 March 2023 A1 Mareh 2021

Mon-current finanvial asscts
Obers - Secuniy deposis (Level 5y RTARE AR 1AL

Thie Bir vl ol foade seseivailes, unbilled e,
e s, e o el shes oo e,

sshoanel cosh equivalents, other bark helances, other curent firancial 2sses, euren Sorcowings, wade payalles wad ot cument Cuzeinl Hebiliies zpjmos

IRErSET eSO Do -Cucenl Souowings (oo D
bartowings apprasimatas fir slie

L dmstituiiuzy e cquivalent o i maket re S0z Smewngs ara eanT

el & TICRrNT TIes and fRigs 022 resel at short indervirls. Acecadingly, the canping valie of seh

Fair vakie of bank depesits ine it nco-sadet Risecial asacis sl luan teoackediang inclhd=4 = aoncirent loans ar equislent oo theirzamding anoti, o the inserags vate oo e iz squivaleit 14 dsorket sl

i of leese liahil
plicalle discuonl pile
The b valies for szeurity depagts Forniing pnat af o

ez and non-cnrrent e payables approcimaes the fir walues a2 onthe sapocting daie, a2 tese are carrisd ot amartisd soared are hassd oo e ol pesanl walue sl the golicips wh s

cairen| olley Doanial assels were caloulatag besec on dizcaurted cash Hows uang an spregpriete discano rije,

) Memure
The diffcenl levels of Trir value lave bean Jafinad below:

Leaal T Leval T hierarchy includes Reaesial ins coments oisswed a0 ved prizes. This ineludes Fted eqniy inzrmantz, rradad Fands ard sunes] fisds tharbave gusted prics. Tha fair valus aloll sqaity irstriments tme loding
bonds} whech ere traded in the stock cecherges 1= veluzd vsing the closieg pice as 0 D el of Ve cepertos period.

il ul Fair value

Lewval 2: The fair vanee af Feneial nstaamcnts o bac acd e B0 aelive market (lar exomple, traced bonds, aver=he songier denvatves) i detormasd vsing valuation welinaues whisl avadmise (s nx ol obarable b
byl vely g5 lis as pogsible vneniiy-specific eximates 10 senifican: mpues racnired fa fair velie an insinmaat are obzervahle, e instrement 5 included i leve] 2.

Tewad 310 o ar mere ol he spnilcard inpuls is ool czsed an obscovable markat data, the stz it i e loded L levs] 3.

Tlare Jaive been oo vilsalions ef Bl mslroments ender Lesel 2
Thare Tave izen oo tiansFes in ither direcvon S e seare soded 32 March 2022 and 21 3arch 2021
Lhe CUnzipeany’s poboy = to recegniss tanskrs i and sl oul ol G valve b levels ws ! ihe ond o the renerling perad.

Vaulation lechaigue wed oo determize Bl vlug
Spetic vishlion lechmoue nsed 1o vahie Enarcizl msouments nckds
curdy deposits were cablived based oz cash Onws digeomnmed S50 il e

.} Finmeind risl mimagemient

sk monagenient Framevsork

1he Compary's actrities 2apose e avarily of financial risks merked sk e ludiug Facsien sxchense rsk el et rete risk), crodio il and hondinersk

The Hokimyg Company's C el Financal Ulticer under the curectiong of the Beard of Diczewis gl i pulisies noross Ui Comy
and znafyse e risks fesd by the Comgany, to e appooprinte rish Emits and conwols w moular nsks and ahoeeze 1 A0S norder B iinin e e e
i aditicns ang the Camnans's activities.

The Compary's tisk munngerent peleics ane essblisned 1o idantify
b depies: al soeh csks, The ok mpmagement polizies asd

T T
L Credic vigk

it rigs cupoane,

Credel sk iz the rist of fmancil los fethe Compazy (Fo cosomer or coomerparty to a financial insames fis
The Company has eredil pofizics in 2lace and the excosures to these eredil nsks ere ncontored on en angoing hasis.

et aetal obBgeions. The sormving amonnt of Tranenl puseis reprovenn the mosdmm o

To pader 1o de credittise for balerezs wiih nanss, mly high rares hanks are poeemed.

wezuriiy deposits in vendors end government degacrments Far cental depesis For hotel properties’ seziring s=races fram them, and rencal deposis for erplores aeemtimndeticiz The Doespay s 2o
B 5 prani Gl i pespest of export incenives, Lurher, the Uompans ks loan balances ontslanding a3 at v2ar 20 fiom s subsidiary, The Compary it expect ey delioll fom these partics wnd
azordingly the cish ol deTault i neglisdhle or oil

The Compamy bas
e

L tuepict o Goandil exposures R trady raosvablasimbiled ravame
approprate 2radit histosy, Salas o ether cosoniees aee madde Tnocash en by

Cinmpany hae policies in plesa 1 epsuee (hot zales on eredi wabost eollueral are made principally to trevel agewa and corparcee campanczs with an
wilii cands,

The Cnnpany an Al T i {iiai o presanls s sxpecled credit losses inrespect of pads reczivazles 'Lhe 505 A ifizd approschi ion (e poipes2 of eonigulaton of especied credit lees for
Lasde reseivables, Lo menitorlig custoiner cradic ik, eustaie s e grouped Lo oo heir ot chargeiorisies including whotas thop e a0 odividial o legal anlity, Uit geagraphical Jeation. industy and cxistencs of
previous Feansial ditfiealties, iFam

Teeomeiliaton of fass allowince orovision
For the year ended  Forthe year ended

31 Whawch 2022 31 March 2021
Dipeming bake: 354 1
Changza in loas allowanze 401 1n
Clcing halanee ] 504




Baraue Hitels Beivire Limited
Diodes to the financisl sestements for the yerremded 31 Marces 2003
i i o fapaes (N ey T it

. Liquidity ridk

The Company 2appoact of moaagng lquidity s o ensire, a8 @ s it wedl e suftizien licaidiy A B JianeliLiag wiven they are dua, wnder zoth normal wod stressed e

iy

Ultinzate resonsibifity
mediuie tzoe al Lo

liuridi gement coats it the halding copeng's Beard ef Lirsetars, which hae saablishel oo oppropricts lgeidin rit masagensest Earenack for the manegs s il o0 |
oyon funding and hgid iy niznageiil syuinsments, Referaore 4% whizh covers fauisty nsk nemozzit of he Compim

Conmury's shoneien,

(i1 Exprosure 0 liguiilicy sk

Tl Gellwwing ane the remaining contracal malkrices of fisancial lizhitdizsan the reporing date, Ube amaunts are gooes ad aliseawnicd:

Contractual exsh flows

31 Wareh 2032 Ciareylog demaunt Total U-1 year 12 yeaws 28 yonrs Wlove than 5 yewrs

Nar-cument hormewiigs 2202 389 U4 ITT - - 1LO0ET2T

hon-oument T oade pavailcs il 8 - -

Leams lobilives 190636 807 L S0 | flat iy

Coremnt Trada payables LEDIE 163316 13148 - - -

Oiher cuerent frpncial liabelines 626 2526 3,620 - - -
THU3RTI ARNY855 226 5060 53,700 3,142,519 235,000

Comtructusl eash Mows

31 March 2024 CATHNET DL Tatal Okl vear 12 yeurs 2-5 years Mare than S years

LCurrert, berrowings 3,706,972 T - - -

Laasa lihilires 1 AEE BT 4,504 L5952 EELA ]

Currenl Trade pavobles 129254 12025 - -

Chzr e Fmncal biltes 240 23437 23459 - - -
ENY R 3319172 27676 54,544 11B,442 237840

i, Marker risle
Tha Company 52 pised to market mak arimarife elatiog o the fck ol charges in market prizes, such au freign wschenge mees and intarest reees, el will affecs the Lo piy s caps v i value ol i heldnes of finansisl
slimenls.

Currency sk

Thie Cormp:

V'S EXTICHUTE 10 Torcig enriency sk 15 on ascomnt of paealks o cpendilure i ctrrenzizs ather than the fstioned surrency ol the Company.

Lxngsure to eurrency 1isl

The Company’ expasurs to Tt curcensy risk at the mnd o the repetiig pocied we s Gl

41 March 2032 Currncy Amsuntin foreign Asound in INE (in
curreny (i husamls) thousamids]

Tinanciol Lisbilifics

Tead: pavalize LIsn - -

31 March 2121 Lurrency Avpunl infereign Amposd in INR (i
varreny in thoes s thiusands)

Financial liabilities
“Irade pagables Lsh ] 1,248

SCnstvicy analysis
& o possinle I i
Torecyn carressy and atfected equity wd poell ur loss by the amaunts shasn helaw. This pnalysn assumes that all alier varishle, in panicular imersst mies, fanai eoustiet and imurs
ey impant of farecas sples end purchascs.

of the Telivn Rupes apamst forzign surraney at yae ol would buve efeacd he z ol fnancial einuiisd i

nenaf fas (inerease) { deercase

[Peofif) / loss
Eifect in ISR i Weakiening
N Macch 2022
1'% miwvement
USDH L% movement) a - 2 i

(Prfith / lnss Eqquity, net of tax {inerease) { decrease
K in INE St o Weitkeni Stecngtleni Wealiening
3 Whrch 2021 .
USTH | % movements

13 13 L]
[1E]] 13 L]




Dargue Woleds Frivie Limiced
Tokes do The anedal statesents Tor the ye
(Al enomits e b Sedfon Bupes (00,

encled 31 Mlarch W27

Tmdercst ke visl

Intorase rate Pako i o rek tut ke G velue or feture eesh Aows ofa fitaneinl marmnen will fucliote beeiuas of changes i mackel ierssl retes, The Company’s sxpreere b the sise ofchanges i markct iclziess iates relatos
priwasihy o e Congusing s Boe s will Testing irbies sales

The Campa e evalaies e inderes] ritles in e marsel on g regn
thzrshy resulting in the adjoam:

zask w explors the opton of redinaneing of tha b et the Camzany, b the Crompany s cunent b
s ol dis horrowing eams (0 Hne Wit e marka1 ineres.

tt et lioked Lo Mozting inlzres. rates,

FXRNSUCE 10 InerEst rate TiEk

Thurinrerss! rate profile of the Conmpany's ineres-hearine G Hinstiment

ominal anoumt

31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
Finedrate instruinents
Finaizial nsiets - Tank depesits 95598 81497
Fiasnzizl nssate - Laan in subsidiaiy 220,667 192277
Finmnzial Labilines - Borcow ng nan-cnavznible dehanmre (Refer Soe 20 Z291.348
i¥artahle- rate lnstrumenis |
Firsmcizl Fabilives - Borvowng Traccial ilitnion seoumd ( Refer Hote 3 - 200472 |

Fabr valie seosivicy sanalysts for sl THSERIMEnTS

T Comprny S ot awcennt Rir ny Redorae fnancinl teset: ar finsmaiel lisblitieg ar fair wnlia firengh pradit oe loss. Tasselore, a chisge i infreet raes ol U repering tats weould not affsct peedit ce oz,

v analysis for varinhic-rate i

A rezsonably possible dhange af 100 basis points in imerost rates ol the reparing date wanld have ivercesed (decesedy coauite avd pealit or Tows by he armonats shoon bebow Tais
analysis assumes thel all ethar vaniables, remawn comstz,

(Profit)! los Equity, nel of fax
inercmic) oot
10 bpa incrense 100 bpa decrease 100 byps fncrcase I D et reae
|

31 Mareh 2022 |
Finunicial liiifies : : : = I
31 March 2021
Lannreial lighilitics 47,500 (27,300} 27,500, 427,300

17,5000 (27,500% 27,500 (275000

44 Capital Management

The: Company's policy i i nuintain g sirong capitel hasz 5o a8 in maiein mvesor, credlior and marke: corfidence aod Lo sistoin Dntre development of the business.
T B of Thecakars seelbs tonaimiain o balans bylveen the hipher relims tat might be pomible wath hugher levels of borrewing and the advemages and zeeuriy afforded by a sound capitel zvation.
The Company moniurs capital using loun wveloe (CTV method 10 anaira that the loan o walie doss ot izoeerss Seyvend 633 an any given repering date 11 svonun Leve|

An o pant of its capiial mannagement palizy, the Compony entires comgliones with 4 dother capitel I

19

of mmcrial con:

quis mhoted 1o repuluory or

2 o the Compaiy, Alss, el ot




Bargue THodels Private Lindied
Motes o the financial statements for the year coded 31 March 2022

M. wmloss otharwvice slated)

(AR cmeowiis ae i Didian Bape
45 Discloswce os per Tnd A8 27 - Sepavate Minnnetal Statem enis

Mame of suly Principal activiiy

Peulmech Hospitality Private Limited Hotels

okl

The sbove investments in 7 is mcssired At sog

Princpal place of
husiness

Irdia

46 Dizclosures uoder Mices, Small snd bMedion Eaterprises Dovelopment Act, 2006 (VSR EDY

Dues to micro, snall and wedinm supplices

The zmounts remaining unpaid to avy tupplier as ot the end of the year:

Principal amaunt
Interest therson

he grvount ol ieteres, paid by G byer ss pe the Yoo Small gnd Muodian Boteiises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act. 20061
The amevn of pavmens made w Mot and Small Suppliers Deyvond e spponted day

during each acceunting

yea
The zmeunt of intecest due and payable for the penad of delay in making payment (waich

hawe bean paid bl beyard the sppomied day duing e year) ol woehout sdding the
interest specified under MEMED Act 200¢,

The ssnount afinteres pecroed and remainine crpaid 20 the encd o each accomring year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable sven in the succeeding vears,
untt] sush date when the iotersst dues as above sre avtially pard 1o the small enterprise for
the murpoze of disallowance as a deducrible exgenditore ondzr section 23 of the MSMED
At 20086,

The management has identified enterprizes which have arovided goods anc services to the Campany and which qualisy

Crwnership interest ai

Asat
31 Mareh 2022

1600

Asal
31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2021

1m0

As al
31 Mareh 2021

L1584
1%

11 e

426

499

4949

nder the defmnon ef miera and smal!

erterprises, ay debined yoder Micro, Small and Medwm Eaterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) Accordingly, the disclusure in respeot of the winounts payable
to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 has seen made in the financial starments based on intormation received and available with the Cempany,

47 Lense disclosures

Delails vl rent expenses:

Particulars

Tor the year ended 31
Wonvch 2022

o the yeur emded 31
Mareh 2021

Capense relaling e vaiable [sass paymenis

J501

Uhe @llewing fabie presents a matunity analyas of expecied undiscounted ash Jows for lease lubilites

g Asardl March2022 | Asat 31 March 2021

Paviiculars
0-1 year 34 364 57378
1-2 years 45,514 34 564
2-5 years 105,242 118842
More thien 5 years 223,008 237540
Lotal Lease paviients 430,718 68874

The reconelliation of kease labilities 1s as follows:

Azt 31 March 2022

Az ot 31 Maech 1021

Particulars
Oipening, balance 253,140 83,518
Amounts resopnized i Statement of Profit and Las: s intsrest cxpense FEGRS
Pavment of leasc Liabilitios (57378}
Closing Balance (1Refer Nole 21 and 26 219,636 253,149

Leases entered by e Company are long o i patre and the uadelyi

eased preperties ave being used as hotel propecties.




Bargue Hotels Private Limited
Mipres ro the financial starements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(AT qnronan s are i foden Rhpees P000), anlesy oplenvive sterfeid)

el

4y

Drariug e verent year, SAMLL [leels Lunisd Ol Lleldig Congpany) bes allosalsd sapenses auouniizg TR 64,094 (21 Mark 2021 - INE 20,804 as Cumpay s
share of project expenass and other cost incurred.

Modeon Gaolng enicersn and Do pact of COVID Y

The Compay is facing bqudity challanges which have been accentuated by uneestunly dee o COVI-12, The Company has net woith of 1N 1,018,979 as al 317
Murch 2032, ncurred a net loug of INE 655,795 during che year ended 3 1 March 2022, As on 31 March 2022, the Company ha izaued non-cervertibie debentuses and
h 2022 which wall
agstet for mmecbing e shorl Lerm habilines for nest 12 montbs, The beaness of the Company vwas tmpasted during the year on acceunt of COVID-19. D Tew munths
ilneszad gofter revannes due Le the subsequent waves of COVID-19 and congegriznt lockdawns in several slates across the countey

thers are no repay merts due within 12 roeaihs of the Lolunce sheet dhate, e company bas ceshand bank balunce of TNE 71,615 weih o as on 31 M

ol the year, the Campany

With increased vaccinatians and consequent reduction in nunber of eases and easing of all cestrictions. the Campany has witnessed 2 recovers, Starting from 03 FY
3022 the Company has dermonstzated improved bosiness perloemaines in tevms of Averaee Room Revene (ARRY and Oeeopaney levels ARR anid Oueupaney Tevels in
Q! FY 2023 have reached MR 3.053 and 63% The Company has continued financial and operational suppert pravided to the Company by SAMBI Hotels Limited
ftha holding company) and has projectsd 1o oenerats profis froo its operaonng,

The Company has assessed the pozsiblz impact of COVIDH9in preparetion of the fianual statervents, ineloding but nor limired o i assessment of licuidity and going
concern assmmztian, reeovarahle values of sts financial and non-finaneial asscts ¢nd mpact an revenues and costs. The Company has considersd internal and extemal
sources of information and has performad sensitivity analyais on the assumptions usad znd based or current estimates, expects to recover the carmving amount af these
assets The impact of COVID-19 may be different fom that estimared s 2t the date of approval of these Faancial statements and the Company will continue to closely
manitor amy material changes to future economic conditicns.

Inview of the sbuve, the management and the Board of Drectors believe that the Company wall be sble to meet all w5 contractual eligations and habilitivs as snd when
they fall due in nezr fururs and aceordingly, these financial statements have keen prepared on a going concem basis




B Hodels 'leate 1 lmied
Dk o che Magioclal seagenicets Mo the y e el 30 Warch 2013
+ R 600,

Pl e it i Jua g aatfine | lag stsitild

wark in pmgiess 13 selation fmosane Anainting |
siabpsasiiin propeny, Ascerdingly, oo

S0 Luning paevipus firanclal your, the Company scrpped the plan for constrction of Gomgaza Getel Gdumbai, S&dabamsaied aed bznee cap
tiem w0 the Suwament of Pkl jind Loss, Trasing the cicoment voar, the Compant has tomndnated the loss2 seeczmizn e Gorepion (Aan

1 son wiitten offas en cocepfingal
ion chimge of ENF 15,332 & recgried o

TElT sscns e ses i deposit amouming oo TR S0 was fefindes by fesser

S1 VR S AR (R erretlEDns, D60 ¥l Rl

Beved gronsuuceisils Muisuy of Cogperave Ak (-MCA") volf ey stsbird or anssalieuts e e e g sosbmds modes Cornpueces (ladie Acceimting Stondicds) Bules oy Lsned Cronic e v Goe, Co 23 Blarcli 2003, 0CA iemzidel
Lhe Companies {ndan Accounone $andards) Amerdme: Hules, 2022, acplianble frem Apml 15t 2022, a5 below:

Tnd A% T - Helarenes to Concepiounl Fromewn ek

itz apssily Ui o yublily Tor reucenitin s park o applyiags Uss oo questiog et e skalilisble aascs mquesd wod abilites asunsd musc o U definitios of assels e labililos i s G
e Trsdian Acuowinting Sumdnrls (Ccroepiusl Sk fsams By e Tnstivde of Chpersl Asannines of Ind a0 e acagrisiicn fing These chanpes & rot signifesnily dusngs e requivsmea s oF hd A8 103 The Campany dnes
nolexpect the amordment t have anv impace inits finacial stalzmeses

sl sk for il

Und A5 16 - Procerds before mrended nse
1= awersimens il protobic unsnbly foosdeducting fram the coct of prazery, plioe and esspmeo: smicunls ressived Fam selling ieme produced swhile the compuny iz preps far it tended gz e, wn oo
sl sules prosset e relelad woetin preliios s The ooy dos nolexpet e amendmants o e am impec iniis renzmilion niis praperts, plioe ored apripmant icits Griecial sl

Tinl A5 37 - Caerous Cositrnets < Costs o Fulifling o Conlra
Ll ampendtuens spoaly that dat tie *coet of Riliing" o conbract cimipriscs e “conts bl relads dirogtly o the coowacl’. Cosiy thail relere dizaily booa contmet cansitlier B peremerdal costs of Fullilling thal comzel jeomple weld b dinoe
Iabanr, merenials) oran silocaien of other coets that rel e directly Lo Falfilling corfeacts, The anendment = essanfia 5 clacification and te Conpany dacs ral zspectlie smasdmaenr o bave ooy ificant impact 0 ks Grencial asinens.

Ind A5 10 - Annusl Improvemenis tn lnd A5 (2021}
T AMSTEE ST wOch foas an onily neinaes when 0 apphics tha 0 percere 1EE af I AR 169010 153aRIRG W igTher 19 deranarmise 5 tanreial iy Thie Campany fo0s 00! 28R (K Ameaimant e Gy snitean impaes in o
Fnzisl statziantz

And Ab 106 - Anmosl Improvements o dnd AS (2021)
18 ey the dl af the ri af lepszhald impraversenis by the lessar inarder 1o resolve ane patznial conlision regarding te teptmen of tease incerticcs thar might eise hasause of hoy lgnsa iiceriives weit
elezaribed i they ilheserticn The Company docs monespes | e amandment i bmye any sgnificr impaet it Dokl siaismeants.

52 Ruriosas requived br Schedule L (o the Cpmganies Act, 2003:

Ratin i L %5 Jumiecator ey minHe T S1 March i022 A1 March 01 Kemirks
Currenl et intimes Uil Curreic Ageals Ul Current Lighilites 13 1 | Currenl mlle ins pecsised due e repeymant of
el bormowings

Dletit-Equitr Ratio intims Uil Harrenigs Vel Lty 2 S0 | Lokl ety walin hers éetreassd doe to dscrase in
deht el memise ineginy
Db Service Coverage Ratie intimzs Lo befare fingnce tosfs, Dbt service ; Finance cosis paid + o ((h 11| Cebt Semice covemape rxin has iniproved dis
deprresistinn gmoi i (Trrincipnl Repaymenes al Taig teerpn o sigmificant  improvemants b D)
sl unarptipl e barruadings perimrance during i cumer yer
FRcumon Eqaiy Ratio i e atler fas Aesivge ol L P =75l R o0 cqulty @oo s iopeoved dis
significant inaeoverments in fianedl perfanei
during the year
Tunzclory Lingver jatic ® i i Ha BA A M i

rads Beceiviebles urmover caue miimes Eeverme o operalions Aoverape Trade Heoihle: 10,2 12,7 |'Lrske recevales lurmoves mbe inreised due o
hietter eTTizicnzy e collocliznes:

Trads payoiles oy er atia IS Cod of manTials consumed + | Aserace Trade Pavables 39 | | Tradz prsasles firnoner i ineresed wilh
Cilber eaperses Iiarzage vl af inzingssnetdly durag e
3 sax,
e infines Tecreine: G apation Anerape Winrking mpitl Ciocot ) 060 20| The g i o sisci il 6 ircogmec: e aeagmie

wnsats Cwnert Tabilie, o o peinig e Dnpoveas b

M pmfir o ingi. e P ) Tooveama from nparitiazs RITETS ~20@ 3% Ml profi i rprved aver (b prevous yenr
with ail i rovemz ol iEass voliees g
i e res g e v,

Feurion Copiial ewiplay el il Lives b Dt st il i | Capital Eploned - Tangilis Mot I & -3.5% 5. 2% Betne o capild gyl lngroved with
AW BT b Ll Larngs PRV ENEN L SPECItIL AETEmS during the year
Belupin ez ¥ A WA HA b Tk

T Compary ks nak presented e Fallewing milics doe fo fie tmsans preen Geboe

= Iwyestory tomover mitjn; Since e Compang hi'ds imeeriory farcansurmpfion in the sorvice af foed and hoversiges and the praporian of such imemory = frsigmifizom o Tajn] Asscs
# Rt un v ooy, Since U e Coupruy Salds swples Goods slich nee e tporary b e o easues adequotes lauidly dorge e yeir

33 Orfer skatsiory ofarmatig

« The Conmzany do=s aor v any Beraud progaoy, where wey precesdivg los besn jniiaied o psodivg agaivst Qe Cotpany for Ioddiog wiy B popess,

- The Commamny dass act huwe amy aneactans with compames sruct off,

=L Curnmany doos s buees any diges oo sallsDeuwbicde s vel o be st with OO bovood e sawnany peoud.

- The Cnmenig Ans iad biadzd ar incested in Crplo siener oe Vimnl Ciierey during tha Rnnszialvenr

- The Conveang 2as et adianced ar fnnned ar imeesod. Fands 1o sy ather permnnis) or ertitetiesh ivelading farei gn entitios (I nermicdsacies) with the inde riznding thar e bt mediary shall:
(3} duacily o7 indrecsiv lead oc imvest inotber persore orenntics idencfied inay anamer whatscever oyar an behatt of the Compamy (Ukimatz Boecficiartes) or
(hj provirs ane grarantes seenrity o7 e ke moran hehal of the Ullimate Bewficiares

= The Compans bas nel am such tonsaction which is no sscorded W ihe Seaks of acconnis der hns been surrendered or discloszd 15 income danng U vear in e oy assesemenis wider te Tnzore Tas Aot 1961 (sueh a5, seuch o0 sureey 0y
otber releh o provisioss of the [noome Tee Act 1961)

=Ll Cumpiany Dy vel been decdard wopallud desautier by bk or sbier ke {2s defue] unler des Companes 2o 20055, mascozdance wath Ue pidelmss oo yellul dsTuliers

= Tl fithe Juds of inmcvalils propeities e e i ki popaes whee e Comme s the essee and (e lass gt are duls excoal i meer of e lese) disakosal o0 e Tieidal st bas @
Coumar Howeren, ool Qe el mme e Lo O ceben e twsos o o o oonvertible debsantires oty e Conpuny dudng D orrma yaur,

1 e e raoee ol L




Bazryees Clogels Frivioe Limioed
Mates to the Tanucial Aatenents fare the veae coded 31 BTaech 2072
TR

Il wadess affeewise datedl

B clawsifieadion

34 Clangs

i, Purs wa eenendment it Schedelz 1L to the Companics Acr 2003, szctive Do | Apeil 1001, e Co

borroaangs fmm "Othess" o " Barrowings" i Correal Tnpucial Labillies Comparats anooms iz

¢ lers meditred e chssibeaton of seourity dopests o 'Lome” b "Others” in Mnacial asse apd Caceol nanitie: ol koglem
125 L (he Aneneial selzmentawers reelasgificd for corsistency.

Ax per carlier tenacted | Revisel clissilieation

Aty
Mra cureear nsseis
Finuneial sscti
Toars

Lithers

Tiabilities

136,800 192237
L8z g
- 106472

Al 5438

b During the wzar ended 31 Mah 2022, Company has revised the pssentaton ol ool 1oles

iz fiaauist For fister 7 i Comparive amonnes in e roles o te Goandal were zeclussibizd for comsistency

As per earlier mported Revised classihication

ther Expensos

Tocel Fuming Fapenses
Comsumption af stares sud supplics
Lagal ol professioral chacigs
Cuirielual Labuar

L7330 -
- 1326
23472 -

33 0 Loyl issue ol soueenyerib ke debeniicnes (refas Mete 30, the Cempam: haz essived 2namount of Fe 2850000 00 25 Ocicbar 2021 Mo Suevum lavedment Fand 1 As per the tarme of Dizhanhra Trosr Doed daned 37 Oetabcr 2000, eul

the sfnrsad smet, Ts 332,000 tod 1o be wilisel for par faaneng the capital e
comzary™ As an 31 Mioch 3022, seclonoward fendiag fivvistnent ks wed tilken place amd berce,

b Guring e gurrenl yedr, G Commany e reessver an InaRrs e loan repayabiz at de oot of e bormver amoucting o s 254550 envan

harhaan nilisad fae pan
punposss aud o e ordivar: courss of Lushiess.

Wit respect ol abomsd trensaction, the relevan provisions of the Campanies Azl 2013 Tas Deen
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